
(Action)

(Presentation)

(Presentation)

(Presentation)

(Information)

(Information)

 

Regular Meeting Agenda
Pioneer Middle School, 1750 Bob's Hollow Lane, DuPont, WA

 

Wednesday, June 21, 2023 06:00 PM

I. CALL TO ORDER

A. Pledge of Allegiance
B. Roll Call
C. Agenda Review
D. Approval of Agenda

II. PRESENTATIONS

A. Recognition of School Resource Officer
Presenter: Susanne Beauchaine

B. Pioneer Middle School Spring Student Athlete Recognition
Presenter: John Nystrom

C. Steilacoom High School Spring Student Athlete Recognition
Presenter: Katie Redman

III. COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Members of the audience wishing to comment on specific items on this agenda will be allowed to comment briefly during the Comments from

the Audience portion of the agenda. Those wishing to speak will please sign the Speaker List in order to be recognized by the Board. Please

limit your comments to three (3) minutes. The Board will not entertain comments during any other part of the meeting. Remarks of a

negative nature singling out specific employees, other than the Board or Superintendent, will not be heard outside of Executive Session. The

Board reserves the right to terminate presentations containing personal attacks on individuals.

IV. REPORTS

A. Pioneer Middle School Athletics Recap
Presenter: John Nystrom

Pioneer Athletics Recap.pdf (p. 4)

Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the  Steilacoom Historical School District 1 are digitally recorded.

Packet page 1 of 225

https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/870768


(Information)

(Information)

(Information)

(Information)

(Action)

B. Steilacoom High School Athletics Recap
Presenter: Katie Redman

SHS Spring Athletics Recap.pdf (p. 9)

C. Budget Status Report
Presenter: Shawn Lewis

Budget Status Report.pdf (p. 16)

V. RECESS TO PUBLIC HEARING

VI. PUBLIC HEARING

A. 2023-2024 Budget Hearing Presentation
Presenter: Shawn Lewis

2023-2024 Budget Hearing Presentation.pdf (p. 27)

B. Comments from the Audience Regarding Public Hearing

VII. RETURN TO REGULAR MEETING

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA

The purpose of the consent agenda is to reduce time going through motion, second and voting on issues of common consent. Any Board

member can ask for any item to be removed from the consent agenda. There is no discussion of items on the consent agenda. By motion of

the Board, remaining items are approved without discussion as part of the consent agenda. Discussion of items removed from the consent

agenda occurs immediately following action on the consent agenda.

Approval of May and June 2023 Accounts Payable and May 2023 Payroll.pdf (p. 48)

Approval of May 17 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf (p. 80)

Approval of Superintendent Personnel Report.pdf (p. 96)

Approval of Admin Personnel Report.pdf (p. 97)

Approval of Certificated Personnel Report.pdf (p. 98)

Approval of Classified Personnel Report.pdf (p. 99)

Approval of Maintenance Facility Change Order #6.pdf (p. 100)

Approval of SHS Cheerleading Nationals Trip.pdf (p. 139)

Approval of Steilacoom High School Sports Boosters Donation.pdf (p. 142)

Approval of Contingency Fee Agreement.pdf (p. 145)

Food Services Management Bid Award.pdf (p. 153)

Interagency Agreement Steilacoom Historical School District and Washington State Department of
Enterprise Services Employee Assistance Program.pdf (p. 190)

Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the  Steilacoom Historical School District 1 are digitally recorded.

Packet page 2 of 225

https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/870315
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/870082
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/870311
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/870317
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/868217
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/870332
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/870817
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/870822
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/870331
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/868898
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/868670
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/869277
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/869575
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/870090
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/870153


(Action)

(Action)

(Action)

(Action)

(Discussion)

(Information)

(Information)

(Executive Session)

(Action)

IX. NEW BUSINESS

A. Approval of 2023-2024 School Board Meeting Schedule
Presenter: Superintendent Weight

Draft 2023-24 School Board Meeting Schedule.pdf (p. 201)

B. Approval of Contracts for Steilacoom High School Assistant
Principals
Presenter: Susanne Beauchaine

Approval of SHS Assistant Principal Positions.pdf (p. 202)

C. Approval of 2023-24 School Year Fee Schedule
Presenter: Shawn Lewis

SHSD 2023-24 School Year Fee Schedule.pdf (p. 204)

D. First Reading of Policy 6881 Disposal of Surplus Equipment and/or
Materials
Presenter: Shawn Lewis

Policy 6881 Disposal of Surplus Equipment and or Materials.pdf (p. 210)

E. Capital Levy Discussion
Presenter: Shawn Lewis

Capital Levy.pdf (p. 213)

X. BOARD COMMUNICATION

XI. ANNOUNCEMENTS

XII. RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION

XIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION

per RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) Legal Issues                                                                                                                  

to discuss with legal counsel representing the agency matters relating to agency enforcement actions, or to discuss with legal counsel representing the

agency litigation or potential litigation to which the agency, the governing body, or a member acting in an official capacity is, or is likely to become, a party,

when public knowledge regarding the discussion is likely to result in an adverse legal or financial consequence to the agency.

 

XIV. RETURN TO REGULAR MEETING

XV. ADJOURNMENT

Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the  Steilacoom Historical School District 1 are digitally recorded.

Packet page 3 of 225

https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/869235
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/870844
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/870984
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/870130
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/870094


Pioneer 22-23 Athletics 

Packet page 4 of 225



Fall Season – XC, Football and Fastpitch

XC – 1st year open to all grades – 24 athletes – 7 meets at 
Fort Steilacoom

Football – 4-1 season – 2 games cancelled due to 
transportation issues (other districts)

Fastpitch – Varsity 5-4; JV 6-3 – One rainout could not be 
made up (end of season)

Packet page 5 of 225



Winter 1 season - Girls Basketball, Wrestling

Girls Basketball – Varsity 8-2 & JV 9-1
Wrestling – Ended the season with 2 district first place 

finishers and 1- third place finish

Packet page 6 of 225



Season 3 – Boys Basketball & Girls Soccer

Boys Basketball – 94 students tried out for 34 positions –
Varsity 8-2 (3rd Place), JV 9-1, C team undefeated. 

Girls Soccer – Varsity – undefeated (2nd season in a row) –
JV 9-1; C team Undefeated

Packet page 7 of 225



Spring Season – Track & Field, Volleyball & 
Baseball

 Track & Field – Took the district overall championship – Boys took 1st

overall, Girls 2nd overall (6th season in a row taking districts – no 
Covid season). 

 Volleyball – Varsity – 6-4; JV 7-3 and C team 6-3
 Baseball – Varsity and JV 8-0 – thanks to parents who are certified 

umps or we would have only played 4 official games. 

Packet page 8 of 225



This presentation uses a free template provided by FPPT.com
www.free-power-point-templates.com

Steilacoom High School
Spring Athletics Recap 

Packet page 9 of 225



This presentation uses a free template provided by FPPT.com
www.free-power-point-templates.com

Baseball - Coached by Corey Widman and Casey Lovelle

Baseball had a very successful season.  

They finished 4th in the league and placed 

5th overall in the league tournament.

They qualified for state. 

First Team All-league - Micah Bujacich, 

Gavin Coke, and Reese Widman.

Second Team All-league - Wyatt Whelan

Honorable Mention - Drew Macdonald

Coach of the Year - Corey Widman
Packet page 10 of 225



This presentation uses a free template provided by FPPT.com
www.free-power-point-templates.com

Fastpitch - Coached by Charles Porsche and Brooklyn Taylor-Sparks

The Fastpitch team had a really solid 

season. 

They placed 6th in league and qualified for 

the district tournament.  

Second Team All-league - Katie Reger

Honorable Mention - Cadence Gorman and 

Jessica Potts

Packet page 11 of 225



This presentation uses a free template provided by FPPT.com
www.free-power-point-templates.com

Boys Soccer - Coached by Nate Renner and Sean Wood

Boys soccer had a stellar season.  

They finished 6th in the SPSL and qualified 

for the district tournament. 

They lost in a winner to state game, but 

won two district playoff games. 

First Team All-league - Jake Jenner

Second Team All-league - Gavin Million, 

Isaiah Aruwah, and Mitch Myers

Packet page 12 of 225



This presentation uses a free template provided by FPPT.com
www.free-power-point-templates.com

Girls Tennis - Coached by Alan Magaway and Ernie Manning

Girls Tennis has a wonderful season.  

They finished 3rd in league.  Delaney 
Brinkhaus and Jayden Beverly had strong 
showings at the league tournament.  

First Team All-league - Delaney Brinkhaus, 
Jayden Beverly

Second Team All-league - Emi Duncan/Aya 
Kubota (doubles), Jasmine 
Contreras/Cristina Masiringi-Zavala 
(doubles)

Packet page 13 of 225



This presentation uses a free template provided by FPPT.com
www.free-power-point-templates.com

Track and Feild - Coached by Jim Seefeldt

Track and Field had a very successful season with many 
athletes making it to post-season.  

Girls Track and Field finished 5th at the league tournament 
and the boys finished 3rd.  

Several athletes went on to complete at districts and then 
state.   

Nathan Cecka placed 4th in state for the Javelin.

First Team All-league - Andy Glaze (400 M), Nathan Cecka 
(Javelin)

Second Team All-league - Caleb Wilcox (1600 M), Isaac 
Schlaht, Xaiden Allen, Aaron Cruz, and Andy Glaze (4x400 
Relay)

Packet page 14 of 225



This presentation uses a free template provided by FPPT.com
www.free-power-point-templates.com

Questions?

Packet page 15 of 225



 

 

June 13, 2023 

To:   Dr. Kathi Weight, Superintendent 

From:  Shawn Lewis 

Subject:  Financial Update  

Attached are the Budget Status Reports for all funds as of the end of May 2023, along with charts and 
data showing our monthly attendance, general fund balance, general fund cash balance, and interfund 
loan balances.  

Our general fund balance at month end was over $2,458,931 or roughly 4.6% of expected expenditures.   
Revenue this month is lower than typical due to the amount the State provides in the month of May – 
which is always lower due to their assumption of levy collections at school districts occurring in April and 
May.  Expenses this month amounted to $4.5 million.  We have about $13 million of budget capacity 
remaining in the year with 3 months to go.  This indicates that we should have enough budget capacity 
to end the year without an extension.   We will continue to be conservative with spending and focus on 
revenue collections for the remainder of the fiscal year. 

Our average annual actual enrollment continues to be under budget, as it has been since the beginning 
of the school year.  Through June, our annual average enrollment is 83.42 FTE below our original budget 
projections – but consistent with the revised budget projection. 

All other fund financial information is consistent with expectations and within board budget parameters. 

The 2023-24 draft budget document has been posted to the website for review and will be discussed at 
the June board meeting.  This document assumes a beginning balance of $500,000 which is still 
consistent with expectations – but is dependent on revenue collections and conservative spending for 
the balance of the fiscal year. 

Please let me know if there are any questions regarding the information contained in the attachments or 
in this narrative summary. 

Packet page 16 of 225



Enrollment
Budgeted FTE 3,159.00            
Actual Average Annual FTE to Date (June) 3,070.58            
FTE Over/Under Budget (88.42)

General Fund Balance
Actual as of Prior Month $4,001,090
Actual as of Current Month $2,458,930
Increase/Decrease in Fund Balance ($1,542,160)
Fund Balance as a % of Budgeted Expenditures 4.90% 50132164
Fund Balance as a % of Expected Expenditures 4.56% 53867849

Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1

May-23

Monthly Budget Report
2022-23 Executive Summary

2,800.00

2,850.00

2,900.00

2,950.00

3,000.00

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

K-12 Enrollment - Non-Running Start

2021-22 2022-23

0.00

50.00

100.00

150.00

200.00

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Running Start Enrollment

2021-22 2022-23

-$1,000,000

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug

Fund Balance by Month

2021-22 2022-23

Packet page 17 of 225



General Fund Cash and Investment Balance
As of Month End April 2023

2021-22 2022-23
Change From 

Prior Year
Sept $3,699,925 $2,127,134 ($1,572,792)
Oct $4,954,039 $3,382,880 ($1,571,159)
Nov $4,196,404 $1,628,957 ($2,567,447)
Dec $3,792,454 $751,911 ($3,040,543)
Jan $3,830,686 $370,061 ($3,460,625)
Feb $3,317,966 ($1,964) ($3,319,931)
Mar $2,991,604 $785,205 ($2,206,399)
Apr $4,489,799 $3,972,916 ($516,883)
May $3,627,568 $2,365,690 ($1,261,877)
Jun $2,705,656
Jul $2,773,910
Aug $2,924,278

Interfund Loans
Interfund Loans Outstanding $0

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug

Monthly Expenses and Revenue

Expenses Revenue

Packet page 18 of 225



Packet page 19 of 225



Packet page 20 of 225



Packet page 21 of 225



Packet page 22 of 225



Packet page 23 of 225



Packet page 24 of 225



Packet page 25 of 225



Packet page 26 of 225



 OF DIRECTORS 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Board Meeting Date: June 21, 2023 

Strategic Focus Area 

☒  Achieve       

☒   Support  

☒  Connect 

☒  Plan 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Board and public will receive a briefing on the Draft 2023-24 SHSD F-195 Budget at the June 
21 Regular Meeting.  There will also be a public hearing to allow the Board to hear feedback on this 
draft budget.  The full presentation is included as part of the Board background materials.   
 
The complete F-195 budget can be found under “Reports” on the Financial Services webpage at 
this link Draft 2023-24 F195 Budget Report or by copying and pasting the following link into a web 
browser. https://www.steilacoom.k12.wa.us/fs/resource-manager/view/ee742e13-12e4-4ee7-a9c7-
6a86a0fd0220. 
 
Before the July Board meeting, additional corrections will be made to the draft budget and the 
Educational Service District will review the budget.  We will also provide public notice in the Tacoma 
News Tribune in accordance with state requirements. 
 
Another public hearing will be held at the July Board meeting.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
No action is required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Shawn Lewis, Executive Director 
_______________________________________________________________________________  

Packet page 27 of 225

mailto:rburge@kcda.org
https://www.steilacoom.k12.wa.us/fs/resource-manager/view/ee742e13-12e4-4ee7-a9c7-6a86a0fd0220
https://www.steilacoom.k12.wa.us/fs/resource-manager/view/ee742e13-12e4-4ee7-a9c7-6a86a0fd0220
https://www.steilacoom.k12.wa.us/fs/resource-manager/view/ee742e13-12e4-4ee7-a9c7-6a86a0fd0220


2 0 2 3 - 2 4
D R A F T
S H S D  
BUDGET

June 21, 2023

Packet page 28 of 225



BUDGET SUMMARY

Additional Staffing
reductions since last Board
Briefing:

One District Admin
One District CLS Support
One School Office
Support

Some corrections still
needed to Budget before
final

Overall Draft Budget Fund
Balance at 1.4% of Current
Year Expenses 
Enrollment Estimate is
Conservative
No Capacity - any increases
will require a budget
extension next year

Packet page 29 of 225



B U D U G E T
A S S U M P T I O N S  
GENERAL FUND

Packet page 30 of 225



OVERALL BUDGET (PAGE 1)
ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2023-24 

Packet page 31 of 225



ENROLLMENT  (PAGE 4)
ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2023-24

Packet page 32 of 225



LOCAL REVENUE
 ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2023-24 

Packet page 33 of 225



STATE REVENUE
ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2023-24 

Packet page 34 of 225



FEDERAL REVENUE
ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2023-24 

Packet page 35 of 225



EXPENDITURES 
ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2023-24

Packet page 36 of 225



EXPENDITURES 
ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2023-24

Packet page 37 of 225



EXPENDITURES 
ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2023-24

Packet page 38 of 225



DISTRICT LEVEL REDUCTIONS
ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2023-24 

Packet page 39 of 225



ELEM. LEVEL REDUCTIONS
ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2023-24 

Packet page 40 of 225



SECONDARY REDUCTIONS
ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2023-24 

Packet page 41 of 225



COMPARISON TO CURRENT
ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2023-24 

Packet page 42 of 225



B U D G E T
A S S U M P T I O N S  

OTHER FUNDS 

Packet page 43 of 225



OTHER FUND ASSUMPTIONS

ASB Fund
Less District Support for
Athletics (Helmet
Reconditioning and Pool
Fees)
Raised ASB
Card/Athletic Fees to
support Athletics
Programs

Capital Projects Fund
Only Emergency Expenses
Impact Fees Used for Land
No Summer Projects

Debt Service Fund
2024 Voted Debt - $0
Bond Rate will Decrease
from $1.63 to $0.00

Packet page 44 of 225



DEBT BUDGET (PAGE 128)
ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2023-24 

Packet page 45 of 225



ASB BUDGET (PAGE 126)
ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2023-24 

Packet page 46 of 225



CAPITAL BUDGET (PAGE 134)
ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2023-24 

Packet page 47 of 225



Packet page 48 of 225



Packet page 49 of 225



Packet page 50 of 225



Packet page 51 of 225



Packet page 52 of 225



Packet page 53 of 225



Packet page 54 of 225



Packet page 55 of 225



Packet page 56 of 225



Packet page 57 of 225



Packet page 58 of 225



Packet page 59 of 225



Packet page 60 of 225



Packet page 61 of 225



Packet page 62 of 225



Packet page 63 of 225



Packet page 64 of 225



Packet page 65 of 225



Packet page 66 of 225



Packet page 67 of 225



Packet page 68 of 225



Packet page 69 of 225



Packet page 70 of 225



Packet page 71 of 225



Packet page 72 of 225



Packet page 73 of 225



Packet page 74 of 225



Packet page 75 of 225



Packet page 76 of 225



Packet page 77 of 225



Packet page 78 of 225



Packet page 79 of 225



Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 are digitally recorded. 

Page 1 of 9 
 

 

  
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Steilacoom High School · 54 Sentinel Drive · Steilacoom, WA 
May 17, 2023 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Scott called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 Executive Director Susanne Beauchaine led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 Director McDonald made a motion to excuse Director Hogan for medical reasons, Director 
 Tinsley seconded the motion, and the motion passed (4/0). 
 Directors McDonald, Rohrer, Scott, and Tinsley all present. 
 Director Rohrer made a motion to amend the agenda to move the Executive Session to follow 
 Old Business and add new Item A to New Business titled Provisional Non-Renewal Appeal,  

Director Tinsley seconded the motion, and the motion passed (4/0). 
 
II. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Steilacoom High School Band 
Mr. Matthew Vegh, Steilacoom High School band instructor, introduced Benjamin Hegge, a 
junior at Steilacoom High School, who performed a snare drum solo. Ben place first in state this 
year for this solo. The SHS band and choir will perform their final concerts on Thursday, June 1 
beginning at 6:30 p.m. 
 
B. Steilacoom High School Military Academy Appointments 
Mr. Jake Tyrrell, Director of Secondary Education, shared a video featuring Steilacoom High 
School teachers congratulating the following SHS students on their appointments to military 
academies: 
Rhemmy Chen - US Military Academy - West Point 
Elijah Drake - Naval Academy 
Stephen (Mitch) Meyers - US Military Academy - West Point 
Khush Thakor - Naval Academy 
Mr. Mike Miller, Steilacoom High School Principal, introduced the students, and congratulated 
them on their accomplishments. 
The board took photos with the students. 

 
C. Recognition of Retirees 

Ms. Susanne Beauchaine, Executive Director of Human Resources, recognized the following 
Steilacoom Historical School District employees and congratulated them on their 
retirement: 
Sylvia Yoho - 25 years of service in the district 

Packet page 80 of 225



Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 are digitally recorded. 

Page 2 of 9 
 

Nancy Levcovich - 31 years of service in the district 
Kristi Brown - 16 years of service in the district 
Karen Parr - 37 years of service in the district 
Ms. Beauchaine commended these teachers for their dedication and perseverance, 
especially during the pandemic.  
Ms. Beauchaine introduced Ms. JoAnne Fernandes, principal of Pioneer Middle School, who 
shared her appreciation for Ms. Brown and Ms. Parr, and shared the ways the school is 
celebrating these teachers. She shared gifts, including customized plaques and engraved 
metal bookmarks, with the teachers.  Ms. Fernandes then shared personal messages of 
appreciation with Ms. Brown and Ms. Parr.  
Mr. Ryan Douglas, principal at Cherrydale Primary School, shared Ms. Yoho’s history of 
service in the district, commended her for her years of dedicated service, and presented her 
with a Cherrydale coin.  

 
III. RECESS TO RECEPTION 

Chair Scott recessed the meeting to a reception honoring the retirees at 6:25 p.m. 
 
IV. RECEPTION 
 
V. RETURN TO REGULAR MEETING 
 Chair Scott reconvened the Regular Meeting at 6:40 p.m. 
 
VI. COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE 

• Stephanie Mateus, teacher at Pioneer Middle School, shared on behalf of the Steilacoom 
Education Association and thanked the board for listening to their letter at the last meeting. She 
thanked the district for improvements in communication made since the last meeting. However, 
the SEA still feels more is required from the district, including more support for special 
education and teachers, and more cuts at the district office, specifically administrative staffing 
levels. She encouraged the board to spend district funds where it matters the most – the 
students and the staff who work directly with them.  

• Jessica Guerrero, Lakewood resident, shared as a parent of two students in the district. She 
shared she wants the students and staff who work directly with them to be the primary focus 
for the district.  

• Krista Novak, DuPont resident and district substitute teacher, shared it is impossible to develop 
a thoughtful budget based on numbers alone.  She shared class size and classroom support need 
to be prioritized, and listening to teacher comments and feedback is necessary. She shared 
concern about certificated staff at the district office not being the most effective use of district 
funding, and for better communication regarding district office positions and their roles, duties, 
and benefits to the district. She encouraged the board to visit schools and communicate with 
teachers and students, and to vote in favor of a full audit of the district finances.  

• Chris Maxwell, DuPont resident, shared regarding athletics in the district, specifically the 
freshman football team. He encouraged the district to continue the freshman football team for 
the safety and development of younger and smaller athletes. He suggested cutting all necessary 
middle school athletics in order to continue the freshman football team.  

• Ben Heck, Steilacoom High School student and band member, encouraged the board to not 
reduce funding for the band program, which he feels is already an underfunded program that 
teaches students essential and beneficial skills. 

Packet page 81 of 225



Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 are digitally recorded. 

Page 3 of 9 
 

 
VII. REPORTS 
 

A. Highly Capable Program 
Ms. Sylvia Yoho, the district's Highly Capable Program Coordinator. Ms. Yoho shared a 
presentation on the district's Highly Capable Program including program highlights, instructional 
design information, referral and testing procedures, and learning activities throughout the year. 
Ms. Yoho introduced Matahari Scheel, a second grader from Cherrydale Primary School, who 
shared a presentation.  
Director McDonald questioned the age for the screening. Ms. Yoho shared the district is 
required to screen students in or before second grade, or in or before sixth grade.  Director 
McDonald also asked how the budget will affect the Highly Capable Program next year. Ms. 
Yoho shared that the program is funded through grant funds, so she is hopeful there will be no 
changes to the program. 
Director Tinsley questioned how the district screens students who do not typically test well in 
traditional testing methods. Ms. Yoho explained the screening process, which includes a variety 
of indicators including creative thinking. 
Director Rohrer thanked Ms. Yoho for her many years of service in the district, specifically the 
Highly Capable Program.  
 
B. CTE Advisory Committee Report 
Dr. Jen McDonald shared a CTE Advisory Committee report, including new offerings for the 
2023-24 school year including College in the High School dual credit for American Sign Language. 
Teachers are also exploring other articulation offerings. Due to the Perkins Grant, hydroponics 
for the greenhouse (Pacific Northwest Plants and Wildlife) were purchased in the 2022-23 
school year. Remaining  funds will be used for additional JROTC secure storage needs. Also 
shared were upcoming CTE events for DECA and FCCLA, as well as the Pierce County Skills 
Center Awards Night. 
Director Rohrer shared she is looking forward to being a part of the CTE Advisory Committee. 
She asked about determining programs. Ms. Katie Redman, Assistant Principal at Steilacoom 
High School, explained the process. She then inquired about how students are introduced to the 
program. Ms. Redman shared this happens during High School and Beyond night as well as 
through the CTE video that is played during registration. 

 
C. Budget Status Report 
Mr. Shawn Lewis, Executive Director of Administrative Services, shared budget status reports for 
all funds as of the end of April 2023, along with charts and data showing the district's monthly 
attendance, general fund balance, general fund cash balance, and interfund loan balances. This 
month's budget status reports reflect the new budget as amended by the budget extension 
approved by the SHSD Board of Directors at the April 12 board meeting. The district has finally 
received the long-awaited FEMA grant funds as well as property taxes. Mr. Lewis thanked the 
Steilacoom Kiwanis for their continued support of the district through numerous mini-grant fund 
approvals.  
Director Rohrer asked if the district had enrollment projections for next year. Mr. Lewis shared 
that the district does, and it was presented to the board in the packet from last week’s Board 
Study Session. The district projects a conservative estimate to be even in enrollment with this 
year.  

Packet page 82 of 225



Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 are digitally recorded. 

Page 4 of 9 
 

Chair Scott inquired if the drop in enrollment the district is experiencing is also being 
experienced by other school districts throughout the state. Mr. Lewis shared the average 
enrollment drop across the state has been about 3%. The district is at about an 8% drop in 
enrollment, which is consistent with districts in close proximity to military bases.  
Director Rohrer shared enrollment statistics, including private school and homeschool data. She 
asked how the district can reach out to these families. Mr. Lewis shared the district conducted a 
ThoughtExchange for homeschool families last year. He shared the data listed by Director 
Rohrer as state-wide data, does not match the district’s data. The district has conducted 
outreach, and some families have shared a desire to participate in certain classes or activities in 
the district.  
Director McDonald asked where district students have gone. Mr. Lewis shared our data suggests 
that during the pandemic, families moved out of the district at a fairly normal rate, but the 
district did not have new families move in as in past years. Many families moved out of the state 
during the pandemic. Mr. Lewis asked Ms. Beauchaine if she had any additional feedback to 
share as she is in charge of the district’s Enrollment Department. Ms. Beauchaine shared the 
district did reach out to families to reengage families, and the department can share specific 
data with the board.  
Director Rohrer asked about the board setting up an audit committee that involves community 
and staff related to budget and audit.  

 
VIII. CONSENT AGENDA 

Director Rohrer made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, Director McDonald seconded 
the motion, and the motion passed (5/0). The Consent Agenda included April and May 2023 
Accounts Payable and April 2023 Payroll; April 19, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes; May 
10, 2023 Board Study Session Minutes; Personnel Reports; Resolution 908-05-17-23 
Authorization to Employ Certificated Personnel for 2023-2024 School Year; Resolution 909-05-
17-23 Interdistrict Agreements; Resolution 910-05-17-23 Granting Authority to WIAA; and 
Approval of SHS FCCLA Field Trip to Denver, Colorado. 

 
IX. OLD BUSINESS - Fiscal Audit 

Mr. Lewis shared that at the April Board Meeting, Board members expressed an interest in 
conducting a limited scope fiscal review by an independent source. The discussion included 
concerns around the cost, defining the scope of the fiscal review, and the timing the fiscal 
review to take place after the State Auditor’s Office had completed their annual audit of our 
financial state. 
 
The District contacted our insurance pool provider, Washington State Risk Management Pool, 
who researched our liability coverage and determined our policy covers expenses incurred by 
WSRMP to conduct an investigation, up to the coverage limit of $20,000, for the fees and 
expenses of the independent fiscal review. The District would be assigned counsel, whose role is 
to hire the fiscal investigator, monitor the investigation and render advice to the district based 
upon the results. 
 
Once the Board articulates the scope of the fiscal review, the independent investigator will be 
assigned and can begin the process. 
 

Packet page 83 of 225



Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 are digitally recorded. 

Page 5 of 9 
 

Chair Scott confirmed with Mr. Lewis that this review would review procedures and records for 
possible issues regarding errors and irregularities, a root cost analysis related to budget issues, 
identify causes and contributing factors, and make recommendations for preventing a 
reoccurrence of this happening in the future.  Mr. Lewis confirmed this was correct, and in 
addition, they would be identifying any additional coverages that the district would be entitled 
to potentially for recovering based on any identifiable issues. 
 
Director Rohrer made a motion to amend the tabled motion and to approve a limited scope 
financial review to be done by an independent fiscal officer through the district's WSRMP 
coverage agreement, Director McDonald seconded the motion, and the motion passed (4/0). 
 
Director Rohrer made a statement regarding the board’s role in assuring financial stability for 
the district.  
 
Director Tinsley asked if the state audit was complete yet. Mr. Lewis shared a State Audit 
Update is an agenda item later in the meeting, but the audit has not yet been completed. She 
asked if that audit included an accountability audit. Mr. Lewis confirmed that it does and 
explained in detail the scope of the state audit. Director Tinsley shared she feels good about the 
amount and scope of the audits being conducted, and she hopes the community does as well.  
 
Dr. Weight shared that she will be interviewed by the auditor, and Director Rohrer will also be 
interviewed because she was the Board Chair at the time the budget was adopted. Chair Scott 
will also be interviewed because he has served on the board throughout several budget cycles.  
 
 

X. RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Chair Scott recessed to an Executive Session at 8:04 p.m. 

 
XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

per RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to review  the performance of a public employee 
(g) To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the 
performance of a public employee. However, subject to RCW 42.30.140(4), discussion by a 
governing body of salaries, wages, and other conditions of employment to be generally applied 
within the agency shall occur in a meeting open to the public, and when a governing body elects 
to take final action hiring, setting the salary of an individual employee or class of employees, or 
discharging or disciplining an employee, that action shall be taken in a meeting open to the 
public 

 
XII. RETURN TO REGULAR MEETING 

Chair Scott returned to the Regular Board Meeting at 8:20 p.m. 
 

XIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Provisional Non-Renewal Appeal 
Director McDonald made a motion to uphold the contract non-renewal of David Paynter, 
Director Rohrer the motion, and the motion passed (4/0). 

 

Packet page 84 of 225



Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 are digitally recorded. 

Page 6 of 9 
 

B. Election of WIAA Representative 
Director McDonald nominated Director Tinsley to serve as the WIAA Representative for the next 
year, Director Rohrer seconded the motion. No other nominations. Director Tinsley elected to 
the WIAA Representative position for one year (4/0). 

 
C. Recommendation of DoDEA Grant Proposal 
Dr. Weight shared the district has submitted a grant application for the Department of Defense 
Education Activity (DoDEA) grant for 2023. It is a $1.5 million 5-year grant. Operation ELEVATE 
aims to address the challenges and barriers students face as they progress toward academic 
growth in literacy achievement, particularly in the post-pandemic era. 
 
Director McDonald made a motion to accept the 2023 DoDEA grant in accordance with Policy 
6100, Director Tinsley seconded the motion, and the motion passed (4/0). 

 
D. Recommendation of Mystery Science Curriculum Adoption 
Dr. Paul Harvey presented the Mystery Science Curriculum. Mystery Science is an innovative, 

 standards-aligned, hands-on curriculum that teaches children how to think like scientists. Their 
 phenomena-driven instruction helps kids to better understand and communicate about the 
 world around them through writing, discussion, and exploration. Dr. Harvey shared the 
 Instructional Materials Committee recommends the Board adopt Mystery Science as the science 
 curriculum for grades K-5. Materials and licenses purchased for the 2023-24 school year will 
 utilize DoDEA 2019 funds. Anderson Island materials (other than the complimentary license) for 
 the 2023-24 school year will be purchased out of Teaching and Learning, since they are not 
 eligible to benefit from DoDEA 2019. 
 
 Director Rohrer made a motion to approve the adoption of the Mystery Science Curriculum, 
 Director Tinsley seconded the motion, and the motion passed (4/0). 
 

E. Recommendation of Sube Spanish Curriculum Adoption K-5 
Dr. Laurie Vallieres presented the Sube Spanish Curriculum for kindergarten through fifth 

 grades. Sube meets the World Language ACTFL standards and provides instructional materials 
 that align with our current model for daily instruction. It is also a fiscally responsible choice, 
 costing only $2,750 for K-5. On April 24, 2023, the Instructional Materials Committee decided to 
 adopt SUBE as the K-5 Spanish curriculum, confident that it will provide our students with an 
 exceptional learning experience.  The DoDEA Leading through Language grant will fund the 
 purchase of the curriculum, which will meet our district's needs as we expand one grade level 
 per year. 
 
 Director McDonald made a motion to approve the adoption of the Sube Spanish Curriculum for 
 grades kindergarten through 5th grade, and to approve the purchase of Sube materials for 
 implementation in the 2023-24 school year, Director Rohrer seconded the motion, and the 
 motion passed (4/0). 
 

F. First Reading of Policy 4060 Distribution of Information 
Mr. Shawn Lewis shared the first reading of Policy 4060 Distribution of Information. WSSDA 

 issued an update to policy 4060 which clarifies language and makes clear that, in addition to 
 nonprofit organizations, the district may also distribute information from governmental entities 

Packet page 85 of 225



Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 are digitally recorded. 

Page 7 of 9 
 

 when the information meets district standards and does not interfere with the educational 
 process. The district intends to clarify procedures associated with this policy for implementation 
 beginning in the 2023-24 school year. Updated procedures will be shared with the Board in 
 accordance with normal district processes prior to distribution to schools and implementation. 
 As this policy does not represent a significant change in district policy, staff is recommending 
 adoption of Policy 4060 after this First Reading. 
 
 Director Rohrer made a motion to approve Policy 4060 Distribution of Information, Director 
 Tinsley seconded the motion, and the motion passed (4/0). 
 

G. SHSD Administration and SHSD MOU Concerning Work Calendar for the 2023-24 School 
Year 

Mr. Shawn Lewis shared regarding a reduction in work days for SHSD administration. To mitigate 
 impacts related to overall budgetary reductions for the 2023-24 school year, administrators 
 have agreed to the district’s proposal to reduce the number of calendar days in 2023-24 
 offsetting the negotiated salary increase. This change has been documented through a 
 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for the 2023-24 school year. The district appreciates the 
 willingness of our administrators to agree to a change in their agreed upon contract, for the 
 benefit of the school district’s budgetary stability. 
 
 While not part of the MOU, all other administrators, including the Superintendent, will also be 
 reducing their work calendar to offset planned salary increases. 
 
 With the elimination of two administrator positions and the MOU, the district anticipates a cost 
 savings of approximately $640,000 to the 2023-24 budget. 
 
 Director McDonald made a motion to approve a reduction in work days for SHSD administration, 
 Director Rohrer seconded the motion, and the motion passed (4/0). 

 
Director McDonald asked if the board could be provided what the estimated costs would be for 
a pre-pandemic district administrative team – what would that salary amount have been now, 
including inflation, versus what the district is projecting for the 2023-24 school year.  Mr. Lewis 
stated he would provide this information to the board. 
 
Director Rohrer commended the administrative staff for making these difficult choices. 

 
H. State Audit Update 
Mr. Shawn Lewis shared the State Auditor’s Office conducts an audit of the district's 

 financial statements, assesses the district’s internal controls, audits specific federal programs for 
 compliance with laws and regulations, and reviews the district activity for public accountability. 
 The State Auditor also addresses citizen’s complaints and concerns that are brought to their 
 attention when they fit within the scope of a financial and accountability audit. 
 
 The auditor has informed the district that they are not done with the audit, and will not be able 
 to issue their final opinions until mid-June. Most of the fieldwork is completed, but a few 
 procedures still need to be done and the audit work needs to be reviewed and the report 
 process will begin shortly after. To date, they have completed all the fieldwork for the financial 

Packet page 86 of 225



Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 are digitally recorded. 

Page 8 of 9 
 

 statements and have found no audit issues. 
 
 In the federal program review, they have identified one significant internal control/compliance 
 issue related to the use of federal funding for capital projects. This issue does not relate to the 
 allowability of the use of the funds (funds were spent in accordance with federal law and the 
 applicable grant). The district will be provided more specifics about the condition, auditor’s 
 assessment of the affect and impact of the issue, and their draft recommendation(s) later in the 
 month. They expect to finish up all field work in this area by May 12. 
 
 In the accountability area, the auditor had not identified any areas of concern to date. They 
 expect to complete all field work in this area by May 31. 

 
Director Tinsley asked if the district has had previous audit findings in the past. Mr. Lewis 
explained one finding two years ago with regards to receivables. Internal controls have been 
remedied since that finding. Director Tinsley also asked for clarification on any citizen 
complaints and concerns brought to the attention of the auditor. Mr. Lewis shared there have 
been two topics from citizen (non-employee) complaints with regards to special education 
funding/procedures and potential conflict of interest regarding use of neural education funds. 
The auditor has not yet addressed either of these issues at this point. Director Rohrer asked how 
long it normally takes for the auditor to address these types of issues. Mr. Lewis shared that can 
vary greatly, but these issues are fairly straight forward and it should not take the auditor a 
significant amount of time to address. Any auditor findings would be addressed at a board 
meeting. If the auditor’s office does not find there is an issue, they would not provide a formal 
report.  
 
Chair Scott asked what the now projected cost of the audit will be. Mr. Lewis shared the 
district’s initial estimate was low $30,000. During the entrance conference, the auditor shared 
an estimate of $42,000-$43,000.  The district has already been billed $49,000, so the district is 
estimating $52,000-$53,000.  Some of this additional cost is due to the finding, and some due to 
delays in receiving requested information from the district.  

 
Director McDonald inquired as to the reason for the delay in getting information to the auditor. 
Mr. Lewis shared he did not know why that delay occurred. Director McDonald asked if this 
information was required during the time of the prior CFO, and Mr. Lewis confirmed that was 
the case. His interpretation of the situation is that there appeared to have been a 
communication breakdown between the former CFO and the auditor’s office. 
 
Director Rohrer asked how the district enters information (software), and why the district 
doesn’t use GAAP (General Accepted Accounting Principles). Chair Scott explained GAAP is not a 
software program, but is just accounting principles. Mr. Lewis shared school districts in 
Washington State are required by law to provide financial statements, budgets, reports with 
standards created by the Superintendent of Public Instruction is coordination with the State 
Auditor’s Office (F195, F196, F200). Mr. Lewis shared a detailed explanation of why the majority 
of school districts use the F196.  
 
 

 

Packet page 87 of 225



Regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 are digitally recorded. 

Page 9 of 9 
 

XIV.  BOARD COMMUNICATION 
• Chair Scott shared the board received two emails today. 
• Director Rohrer shared the board received two communications with budget related 

concerns, one regarding CTE, one regarding school start times, one thank you to the 
district’s staff, and one regarding ADA compliant playground equipment. 

• Director McDonald received communication from two separate teachers regarding 
program cuts they had heard about and requesting clarification. 

 
XV.  ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 No announcements. 
 
XVI.  RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 Chair Scott recessed to a Closed Session at 9:02 p.m. 
 
XVII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
XVIII. RETURN TO REGULAR MEETING 
 Chair Scott returned to the Regular Board Meeting at 9:44 p.m. 
 
XIX.  ADJOURNMENT 
 Director Rohrer made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:44 p.m., Director Tinsley seconded 
 the motion, and the motion passed (4/0). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  ________________________________ 
  (Chair) 
 
  ________________________________  
      
      
  ________________________________ 
 
 
_______________________________ ________________________________ 
(Secretary/Superintendent)  
  
  ________________________________ 
 

Packet page 88 of 225



Miller, Gwen <gmiller@steilacoom.k12.wa.us>

School Board Meeting
1 message

Angela Ramos <angelaramos715@gmail.com> Wed, May 17, 2023 at 1:00 PM
To: gmiller@steilacoom.k12.wa.us

[Angela Ramos] [2985 McNeil St.] [DuPont, Wa] [angelaramos715@gmail.com]

 

 

Subject: Urgent Need for Accessible Playground Equipment

Dear School Board Members,

 

I am writing to express my deep concern regarding the lack of accessibility in our

school playgrounds, specifically for students with mobility issues and wheelchair

users. As a parent of a child who faces these challenges, I strongly believe that

playgrounds should be a space where all students can access and play without

barriers.

I understand that our district emphasizes the importance of inclusion, but I urge you

to consider starting with the basics by making our playgrounds truly accessible for

students of all abilities. In doing so, we can create an environment where every child

has the opportunity to actively engage in play, fostering a sense of belonging and

equality among students.

My daughter, who is nearly 9 years old, currently faces significant difficulties when

trying to access certain playground items, such as the spinners. In order to participate,

Packet page 89 of 225

mailto:angelaramos715@gmail.com


she relies on her paraeducator to physically lift and carry her onto the equipment. This

not only compromises her dignity but also subjects her to unnecessary attention from

her peers. It is disheartening to witness how this experience systematically

differentiates her

I strongly believe that every child should be able to play independently and without

the need for physical assistance. By installing accessible playground surfaces like

unitary surfaces to replace the current loose-fill surfaces, such as wood chips.

Unitary surfaces, including poured-in-place rubber, bond-in-place rubber, interlocking

resilient tiles, and synthetic turf or grass with protective under-padding, offer

significant advantages over loose-fill surfacing. Although the upfront cost may be

higher, the long-term benefits of unitary surfaces, such as durability and low

maintenance costs, make them a cost-effective choice.

 

Moreover, unitary surfacing ensures complete accessibility and ease-of-use for

students with mobility issues or those using wheelchairs, aligning with our district's

commitment to inclusivity.

 

I respectfully request that the school board takes immediate action to address this

issue by replacing the current loose-fill surfaces with unitary surfaces in all our

school playgrounds. Investing in these safer and more accessible surfacing materials

will not only benefit the students currently enrolled but also demonstrate our

commitment to creating an inclusive environment for generations to come.

Packet page 90 of 225



Packet page 91 of 225



Packet page 92 of 225



Packet page 93 of 225



Packet page 94 of 225



Packet page 95 of 225



STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
SUPERINTENDENT PERSONNEL REPORT - JUNE 21, 2023

Name Position Location Effective Date Comment
WEIGHT KATHI SUPERINTENDENT DISTRICT OFFICE 7/1/2023 July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2026

Packet page 96 of 225



STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
ADMIN PERSONNEL REPORT - JUNE 21, 2023

Name Position Location Effective Date Action
GREER SUSAN ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL CHLOE CLARK/ANDERSON ISLAND 6/30/2023 RESIGNATION
SOETE JESSICA ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL HIGH SCHOOL 6/30/2023 RESIGNATION
BEAUCHAINE SUSANNE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES DISTRICT OFFICE 7/1/2023
CLAUSON ALEX PRINCIPAL SALTAR'S POINT 7/1/2023
DOUGLAS RYAN PRINCIPAL CHERRYDALE 7/1/2023
DUNCAN LORETTA PRINCIPAL CHLOE CLARK 7/1/2023
ELLISON TABITHA DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES DISTRICT OFFICE 7/1/2023
ERWIN-SVOBODA RUTH ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL PIONEER 7/1/2023
FERNANDES JOANNE PRINCIPAL PIONEER 7/1/2023
FIRTH CHRISTINE ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL SALTAR'S POINT/CHLOE CLARK 7/1/2023
LEWIS SHAWN ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT DISTRICT OFFICE 7/1/2023
MILLER MIKE PRINCIPAL (INTERIM)/ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL ANDERSON ISLAND/CHERRYDALE 7/1/2023
NYSTROM JOHN ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL PIONEER 7/1/2023
SNYDER MARY DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SUPPORTS DISTRICT OFFICE 7/1/2023
SULLIVAN GUDRUN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES DISTRICT OFFICE 7/1/2023
TYRRELL JACOB PRINCIPAL (INTERIM) HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2023
VALLIERES LAURIE DIRECTOR OF TEACHING & LEARNING DISTRICT OFFICE 7/1/2023

Packet page 97 of 225



STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL REPORT - JUNE 21, 2023

   
Name Position FTE Location Effective Date Action Comment
BLACKMON SAMANTHA SLP 0.80 CHERRYDALE 8/31/2023 RESIGNATION
DOMIER-BONNIN ABBY COUNSELOR 1.00 HIGH SCHOOL 8/31/2023 RESIGNATION
RAUSCHENDORFER MATTHEW TEACHER 1.00 SALTAR'S POINT 8/28/2023 NEW HIRE One year - leave of absence replacment
SPECHT JOAN SLP 1.00 DISTRICT WIDE 8/28/2023 NEW HIRE
CARR REID TEACHER 1.00 SALTAR'S POINT 8/30/2023 LEAVE OF ABSENCE For the 2023-24 School Year

Packet page 98 of 225



STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL REPORT - JUNE 21, 2023

Name Position Hours Location Effective Date Action Comment
GRAHAM KAREN LPN 7.00 DISTRICT WIDE 8/31/2023 NEW HIRE
BLANK NOAH PARAPROFESSIONAL 6.50 SALTAR'S POINT 8/30/2023 RESIGNATION
ESTEP ANDREW PARAPROFESSIONAL 6.50 SALTAR'S POINT 8/30/2023 RESIGNATION
PARSONS AVERY PARAPROFESSIONAL 6.50 PIONEER 8/31/2023 NEW HIRE 1:1 Student Specific 
WILLIAMS JOSIAH PARAPROFESSIONAL 6.50 PIONEER 8/30/2023 RESIGNATION
FOUST TABITHA PARAPROFESSIONAL 6.50 PIONEER 8/31/2023 NEW HIRE 1:1 Student Specific 
JONES-BARNES ANTOINETTE PARAPROFESSIONAL 6.50 CHLOE CLARK 8/30/2023 RESIGNATION
HOBERECHT ANGELA NICOLE SECRETARY 8.00 PIONEER 8/30/2023 RESIGNATION
STOUT CORDELL PARAPROFESSIONAL 6.50 PIONEER 8/31/2023 NEW HIRE

Packet page 99 of 225



Packet page 100 of 225



Packet page 101 of 225



Packet page 102 of 225



Packet page 103 of 225



Packet page 104 of 225



Packet page 105 of 225



Packet page 106 of 225



Packet page 107 of 225



Packet page 108 of 225



Packet page 109 of 225



Packet page 110 of 225



Packet page 111 of 225



Packet page 112 of 225



Packet page 113 of 225



Packet page 114 of 225



Packet page 115 of 225



Packet page 116 of 225



Packet page 117 of 225



Packet page 118 of 225



Packet page 119 of 225



Packet page 120 of 225



Packet page 121 of 225



Packet page 122 of 225



Packet page 123 of 225



Packet page 124 of 225



Packet page 125 of 225



Packet page 126 of 225



Packet page 127 of 225



Packet page 128 of 225



Packet page 129 of 225



Packet page 130 of 225



Packet page 131 of 225



Packet page 132 of 225



Packet page 133 of 225



Packet page 134 of 225



Packet page 135 of 225



Packet page 136 of 225



Packet page 137 of 225



Packet page 138 of 225



Packet page 139 of 225



Packet page 140 of 225



Packet page 141 of 225



Packet page 142 of 225



Packet page 143 of 225



Packet page 144 of 225



1  

Initials 

  
 
 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT FEE CONTRACT 
 
 

The ATTORNEY-CLIENT FEE CONTRACT (“Agreement”) is entered into by and 
between ___________________________ (“Client” or “District”) and Frantz Law Group, APLC 
(“Attorneys” or “We”) and encompasses the following provisions: 

 
1. CONDITIONS. This Agreement will not take effect, and Attorneys will have no 

obligation to provide legal services, until Client returns a signed copy of this 
Agreement. 

 
2. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES 

 
A. CLIENT REPRESENTATIVES. Client designates ______________, or his/her 
designee, as the authorized representatives to direct Attorneys and to be the primary 
individuals to communicate with Attorneys regarding the subject matter of 
Attorneys’ representation of Client under this Agreement. The designation is 
intended to establish a clear line of authority and to minimize potential uncertainty 
but not to preclude communication between Attorneys and other representatives of 
Client. 

 
B. ATTORNEY REPRESENTATIVES. James Frantz, William Shinoff, and 
Regina Bagdasarian of Frantz Law Group, APLC will be primarily responsible for 
the work, either performing it himself/herself or delegating it to others as may be 
appropriate.  

 
3. SCOPE AND DUTIES. Client hires Attorneys to provide legal services in 

connection with pursuing claims for damages associated with Social Media 
litigation, including the preparation and filing of the District’s individual action, 
("Action"). Attorneys shall provide those legal services reasonably required to 
represent Client and shall take reasonable steps to keep Client informed of progress 
and to respond to Client’s inquiries. Client shall be truthful with Attorneys, 
cooperate with Attorneys, and keep Attorneys informed of developments.  

 
4. LEGAL SERVICES SPECIFICALLY EXCLUDED. Unless otherwise agreed in 

writing by Client and Attorneys, Attorneys will not provide legal services with 
respect to (a) defending any legal proceeding or claim against the Client 
commenced by any person unless such proceeding or claim is filed against the 
Client in the Action or (b) proceedings before any federal or state administrative or 
governmental agency, department, or board. With Client’s permission, however, 
Attorneys may elect to appear at such administrative proceedings to protect Client’s 
rights. If Client wishes to retain Attorneys to provide any legal services not 
provided under this Agreement for additional compensation, a separate written 
agreement between Attorneys and Client will be required. 

Packet page 145 of 225



2  

Initials 

 
5. FEES. Client will pay attorneys’ fees of: 

 
Twenty five percent (25%) of any monetary settlement or recovery that Attorneys 
obtain for Client. Client is not responsible for paying Attorneys any money other than 
what has been recovered from Defendants 

 
Fees shall be calculated on the basis of any settlement or recovery prior to the 
deduction of any expense or cost or common benefit fees; the “Gross Recovery.” 
Contingency fee rates are not set by law but have been negotiated. If no recovery is 
made, no fees will be charged. 

 
The term “Gross Recovery” shall include, without limitation, the then present value 
of any monetary payments agreed or ordered to be made by the adverse parties or 
their insurance carriers as a result of the Services, whether by settlement, arbitration 
award, court judgment (after all appeals exhausted), or otherwise. Any statutory 
Attorneys’ fee paid by Defendants shall be included in calculating the Gross 
Recovery, however, any such award of Attorneys’ fees shall be proportionately 
applied as a credit against Client’s obligation to pay its portion of the contingency 
fee amount and shall not be retained by the Attorneys as a separate payment in 
addition to the contingency fee. 

 
(1) “Gross Recovery,” if by settlement, also includes (1) the then-present value 

of any monetary payments to be made to the District; and (2) the fair market 
value of any non-monetary property and/or services to be transferred and/or 
rendered for the benefit of the District; and (3) any Attorneys’ fees and costs 
recovered by the District as part of any cause of action that provides a basis 
for such an award. “Recovery” may come from any source, including, but 
not limited to, the adverse parties to the District and/or their insurance 
carriers and/or any third party, whether or not a party to formal litigation. 
The contingent fee is calculated by multiplying the recovery by the fee 
percentage. This calculation is performed on the gross recovery amount 
before the deduction of expenses as discussed above. 

 
Gross Recovery, except in the case of a settlement, does not contemplate 
nor include any amount or value for injunctive relief or for the value of an 
abatement remedy which may be obtained in a final arbitration award or 
court judgment. 

 
(2) The District shall not be obligated to pay the Attorneys unless Attorneys are 

successful in collecting a monetary recovery on the District’s behalf as a 
result of the Services. 

(3) If, by judgment, the District is awarded in the form of property or services 
(In Kind), the value of such property and services shall not be included for 
purposes of calculating the Gross Recovery. 

 
(4) If, by judgment, there is no money recovery and the District receives In 

Packet page 146 of 225



3  

Initials 

Kind relief, Attorneys acknowledge that District is not obligated to pay 
Attorneys’ fees from public funds for the value of the In Kind relief. In the 
event of In Kind relief, by judgment, Attorneys' sole source of recovery of 
contingent fees will come from a common fund or court ordered Attorney’s 
fees. 

(5) The District agrees the Defendant shall pay all Attorneys’ fees in a settlement 
that includes nonmonetary value. Client understands that Attorneys have 
and will invest resources into prosecuting this action on behalf of the Client 
and agrees to make a good faith effort to include Attorneys' Fees as part of 
the terms of any settlement or resolution of the Action. 

 
If Client and Attorney disagree as to the fair market value of any non- monetary 
property or services as described above, Attorney and Client agree that a binding 
appraisal will be conducted to determine this value. 

 
It is possible that payment to the Client by the adverse parties to the Action or their 
insurance carrier(s) or any third-party may be deferred, as in the case of an annuity, 
a structured settlement, or periodic payments. In such event, gross recovery will 
consist of the initial lump sum payment plus the present value (as of the time of the 
settlement) of the total of all payments to be received thereafter. The contingent fee 
is calculated, as described above, by multiplying the gross recovery by the fee 
percentage. The Attorney’s fees will be paid out of the initial lump-sum payment if 
there are sufficient funds to satisfy the Attorney’s fee. If there are insufficient funds 
to pay the Attorney’s fees in full from the initial lump sum payment, the balance 
owed to Attorney will be paid from subsequent payments to Client before there is 
any distribution to Client. 

 
A. Reasonable Fee if Contingent Fee is Unenforceable or if Attorney is Discharged 

Before Any Recovery. In the event that the contingent fee portion of this 
agreement is determined to be unenforceable for any reason or the Attorneys 
are prevented from representing Client on a contingent fee basis, Client agrees 
to pay a reasonable fee for the services rendered. If the parties are unable to 
agree on a reasonable fee for the services rendered, Attorneys and Client agree 
that the fee will be determined by arbitration proceedings before a mutually 
agreed upon neutral affiliated with either the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation 
Services (JAMS) or Judicate West (JW); in any event, Attorney and Client 
agree that the fee determined by arbitration shall not exceed twenty five percent 
(25%) of the gross recovery as defined in paragraph 5. 

 
B. No General Fund Payments. Notwithstanding any other provision in this 

agreement, in no event will the Client be required to pay legal fees out of any 
fund other than the monies recovered from Defendants in this litigation. Under 
no circumstances shall School District general funds be obligated to satisfy the 
contingent Attorneys’ fees as a result of this case or this contingency fee 
contract. 

 

Packet page 147 of 225



4  

Initials 

6. COSTS AND EXPENSES. In addition to paying legal fees, Client shall reimburse 
Attorneys for all “costs/expenses”, which includes but is not limited to the following: 
process servers’ fees, fees fixed by law or assessed by courts or other agencies, court 
reporters’ fees, long distance telephone calls, messenger and other delivery fees, 
parking, investigation expenses, consultants’ fees, expert witness fees, and other 
similar items, incurred by Attorneys. Other costs and expenses include case 
management computer services, Document Management Services, case 
administration/accounting fees and costs, and other similar items. ATTORNEYS 
may find it necessary and/or in the CLIENT(S)' best interests to obtain the services 
of legal, clerical, and/or other personnel who are not ATTORNEYS regular 
employees, but outside independent contractors. The costs/expenses incurred that 
Attorneys advance will be owed in addition to attorneys’ fees and Client will 
reimburse those costs/expenses after Attorneys’ fees have been deducted. If there is 
no recovery, Client will not be required to reimburse Attorneys for costs and fees. In 
the event a recovery is less than incurred costs/expenses, Client will not be required 
to reimburse Attorneys for costs/expenses, above and beyond the recovery, and fees. 

 
SHARED EXPENSES: Client understands that Attorneys may incur certain 
expenses that jointly benefit multiple clients, including, for example, expenses for 
travel, experts, and copying. Client agrees that Attorneys shall divide such expenses 
equally, or pro rata, among such clients, and deduct Client’s portion of those 
expenses from Client’s share of any recovery.  

 
FEDERAL MDL AND STATE COORDINATION COMMON BENEFIT FEES:  
Various Attorneys, including Frantz Law Group, frequently serve on plaintiffs’ 
steering or executive committees in Multi-District Litigations (MDLs) and/or the 
California state court coordinated proceedings (JCCP’s) and perform work which 
benefits Attorneys’ clients as well as clients of other attorneys involved in the same 
litigation. As a result, the court or courts where the cases are pending may order 
that Attorneys are to receive additional compensation for Attorneys time and effort 
which has benefitted all claimants. Compensation for this work and effort, which is 
known as “common benefit fees,” may be awarded to Attorneys by a court or courts 
directly from the assessments paid by The District and others who have filed claims 
in this litigation. Court orders generally have no bearing on the contractual 
relationship between our firm and your district and will not in any way reduce the 
amount of fees owed under this Agreement. Absent a court order to the contrary, 
the payment of a common benefit fee will not reduce the Attorney fees to be paid 
by Client under this agreement. 

 
6. LIEN. In the event any third party attempts to lien any proceeds recovered from a 

recovery in this matter, Client hereby grants, and agrees, TO THE EXTENT 
PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, that Attorneys hold, a first priority and 
superior lien on any and all proceeds recovered from Defendants in this litigation 
in the amount of the Attorneys’ fees and costs that the Attorneys are entitled to 
under this Agreement. This lien right is limited to only those monies recovered from 
Defendants and in no way affects any other rights of the Client in any way 
whatsoever. 

Packet page 148 of 225



5  

Initials 

 
 

7. DISCHARGE AND WITHDRAWAL. 
 

A. Client may discharge Attorneys at any time. After receiving notice of 
discharge, Attorneys shall stop services on the date and to the extent 
specified by the notice of discharge, and deliver to Client all evidence, files 
and attorney work product for the Action. This includes any computerized 
indices, programs and document retrieval systems created or used for the 
Action. 

 
B. Attorneys may withdraw with Client’s consent or for good cause. Good 

Cause includes Client’s breach of this Agreement, Client’s refusal to 
cooperate with Attorneys, or any other fact or circumstance that would 
render Attorneys continuing representation unlawful or unethical. Attorneys 
may also discharge Client if Client at any time is dishonest with Attorneys 
or fails to provide relevant information to Attorneys. 

 
8. ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES:  ATTORNEY and CLIENT agree that should any 

Dispute arise between them, it must be mediated first, before any claims are filed. 
Specifically any and all disputes, controversies or claims arising out of, or related to 
this Agreement and/or ATTORNEY’S representation of CLIENT, including claims of 
malpractice (collectively referred to herein as “Dispute” or “Disputes”), shall be 
submitted to mediation at the offices of Judicial Arbitration & Mediation Services, Inc. 
(“JAMS”) at the JAMS location closest to the Client or at another mutually acceptable 
location before a retired judge or other mediator affiliated with JAMS, agreed to 
between the parties and, if the parties cannot agree, before a retired judge selected by 
JAMS. No petition for arbitration can be filed until after this agreed-upon mediation 
has occurred, and any petition for arbitration (or litigation) filed prior to conclusion of 
this mediation shall be subject to dismissal, pursuant to this Agreement.  Client will pay 
one-half of the actual cost of the mediation, but each party will be responsible for his 
or her own attorneys’ fees and preparation costs. The parties agree that any Dispute, 
whether submitted to mediation or not, will not be litigated in court.  Rather, any 
Dispute, which is specifically defined above to include claims of malpractice, will be 
submitted to mandatory binding arbitration before JAMS.  By signing this Agreement, 
CLIENT and ATTORNEY agree to arbitration and waive the right to a court or jury 
trial and the right to appeal. Any Disputes shall be decided in at the JAMS location 
closest to the Client or at such other mutually acceptable location, applying California 
law. CLIENT is not waiving rights to arbitration before the San Diego County Bar 
Association.  

 
9. AUTHORITY OF ATTORNEY. Attorneys may, with prior Client approval, 

associate co-counsel if the Attorneys believe it advisable or necessary for the proper 
handling of Client’s claim, and expressly authorize the Attorneys to divide any 
Attorneys’ fees that may eventually be earned with co-counsel so associated for the 
handling of Client’s claim. Attorneys understand that the amount of Attorneys’ fees 
which Client pays will not be increased by the work of co-counsel associated to assist 

Packet page 149 of 225



6  

Initials 

with the handling of Client’s claim, and that such associated co-counsel will be paid 
by the Attorneys out of the Attorneys’ fees Client pays to the Attorneys. 

 
10. DISCLAIMER OF GUARANTEE. Nothing in this Contract and nothing in 

Attorneys’ statements to Client will be construed as a promise or guarantee about 
the outcome of Client’s matter. Attorneys make no such promises or guarantees. 
Attorneys’ comments about the outcome of Client’s matter are expressions of 
opinion only. 

 
11. MULTIPLE REPRESENTATIONS: The District understands that Attorneys do or 

may represent many other individuals/entities with actual or potential litigation 
claims. Attorneys’ representation of multiple claimants at the same time may create 
certain actual or potential conflicts of interest in that the interests and objectives of 
each client individually on certain issues are, or may become, inconsistent with the 
interests and objectives of the other. Attorneys are governed by specific rules and 
regulations relating to Attorneys professional responsibility in Attorneys 
representation of clients, and especially where conflicts of interest may arise from 
Attorneys representation of multiple clients against the same or similar Defendants, 
Attorneys are required to advise Attorneys’ clients of any actual or potential 
conflicts of interest and obtain their informed written consent to Attorneys 
representation when actual, present, or potential conflicts of interest exist. By 
signing this agreement, The District is acknowledging that they have been advised 
of the potential conflicts of interest which may be or are associated with Attorneys 
representation of The District and other multiple claimants and that The District 
nevertheless wants the Attorneys to represent The District, and that The District 
consents to Attorneys representation of others in connection with the litigation. 
Attorneys strongly advise The District, however, that The District remains 
completely free to seek other legal advice at any time even after The District signs 
this agreement. 

 
12. AGGREGATE SETTLEMENTS: Often times in cases where Attorneys represent 

multiple clients in similar litigation, the opposing parties or Defendants attempt to 
settle or otherwise resolve Attorneys' cases in a group or groups, by making a single 
settlement offer to settle a number of cases simultaneously. There exists a potential 
conflict of interest whenever a lawyer represents multiple clients in a settlement of 
this type because it necessitates choices concerning the allocation of limited 
settlement amounts among the multiple clients. However, if all clients consent, a 
group settlement can be accomplished and a single offer can be fairly distributed 
among the clients by assigning settlement amounts based upon the strengths and 
weaknesses of each case, the relative nature, severity and extent of injuries, and 
individual case evaluations. In the event of a group or aggregate settlement 
proposal, Attorneys may implement a settlement program, overseen by a referee or 
special master, who may be appointed by a court, designed to ensure consistency 
and fairness for all claimants, and which will assign various settlement values and 
amounts to each client’s case depending upon the facts and circumstances of each 
individual case. The District authorizes us to enter into and engage in group 
settlement discussions and agreements which may include The District’s individual 

Packet page 150 of 225



7  

Initials 

claims. Although The District authorizes us to engage in such group settlement 
discussions and agreements, The District will still retain the right to approve, and 
Attorneys are required to obtain The District’s approval of, any settlement of The 
District’s case. 

 
13. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM. This Agreement will take effect upon execution 

by District and Attorneys. 
 

14. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which, taken together, shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. Facsimile or pdf versions of this Agreement 
shall have the same force and effect as signature of the original. 

 
The above is approved and agreed upon by all parties. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

Packet page 151 of 225



8  

Initials 

 
 
 

Dated:       
Print Name: 
Frantz Law Group, APLC 

 
 

Dated:       
District Representative 

Packet page 152 of 225



 OF DIRECTORS 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Board Meeting Date: June 21, 2023 

Strategic Focus Area 

☐  Achieve       

☒   Support  

☒  Connect 

☒  Plan 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Steilacoom Historical School District contracts for Food Management services.  In accordance 
with state law and board policy, the district is required to solicit bids for these services and can 
issue a contract for no more than five years.  The district’s current contract with Sodexo expires at 
the end of this school year. 
 
The District solicited for bids on March 30, 2023.  In January, the district conducted a pre-bid 
conference for prospective vendors.  A total of two vendors expressed interest in providing food 
service management services to the district, but only one vendor chose to submit bids and all 
required documentation.  The single responsive bidder was Sodexo, and they provided all 
mandatory documents and met all requirements as listed in the RFP.  
 
The bid from Sodexo represents a continuation of our partnership in serving students through 
nutrition services.  It provided for a fixed fee price per meal at $4.17 less any federal commodity 
credit.  It also provides for a guaranteed five year minimum break even return to the district. 
 
After evaluating the costs and all other criteria, the District recommends the board award the food 
services management services contract.  The district will finalize the contract based on the bid 
award after board approval. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
I move to award Sodexo At School the contract for providing food service management services in 
accordance with the attached bid documents for a five year period beginning with the 2023-24 
school year. 
 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Shawn Lewis, Executive Director 
_______________________________________________________________________________  

Packet page 153 of 225



Packet page 154 of 225



Packet page 155 of 225



Packet page 156 of 225



Packet page 157 of 225



Packet page 158 of 225



Packet page 159 of 225



Packet page 160 of 225



Packet page 161 of 225



Packet page 162 of 225



Packet page 163 of 225



Packet page 164 of 225



Packet page 165 of 225



Packet page 166 of 225



Packet page 167 of 225



Packet page 168 of 225



Packet page 169 of 225



Packet page 170 of 225



Packet page 171 of 225



Packet page 172 of 225



Packet page 173 of 225



Packet page 174 of 225



Packet page 175 of 225



Packet page 176 of 225



Packet page 177 of 225



Packet page 178 of 225



Packet page 179 of 225



Packet page 180 of 225



Packet page 181 of 225



Packet page 182 of 225



Packet page 183 of 225



Packet page 184 of 225



Packet page 185 of 225



Packet page 186 of 225



Packet page 187 of 225



Packet page 188 of 225



Packet page 189 of 225



 

Enterprise Services (EAP) Interagency Agreement No. K8365 Page 1 
 
 

WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENTERPRISE SERVICES 
Contracts and Procurement Division 
Employee Assistance Program 
P.O. Box 41411 
Olympia, WA  98504-1411 

INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

IAA No.: K8365 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
511 Chambers Street 
Steilacoom, WA 98388 
 

Effective Date: July 1, 2023 

 
 

INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
AND 

WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENTERPRISE SERVICES 
EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

 
Pursuant to RCW Chap. 39.34 and RCW 41.06.080, this Interagency Agreement (“Agreement”) is made 
and entered into by and between the State of Washington acting by and through the Employee Assistance 
Program (“EAP”) of the Department of Enterprise Services (“Enterprise Services”), a Washington State 
governmental agency and Steilacoom Historical School District (“Client Organization”), a Washington 
State institution and is dated and effective as of July 1, 2023. 

R E C I T A L S 

A. The Washington State Legislature has authorized Enterprise Services to administer the 
Washington State Employee Assistance Program.  See RCW 41.04.720. 

B. Enterprise Services, through its Employee Assistance Program, has dedicated professional team 
members and resources, including contracted resources, to provide a robust employee assistance 
program on an enterprise basis, which leverages state resources in a cost-effective and efficient 
manner.   

C. Client Organization desires to contract with Enterprise Services for employee assistance services 
through its Employee Assistance Program. 

D. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms and conditions pursuant to which 
Enterprise Services will provide the requisite employee assistance services to Client Organization 
such that both Client Organization and Enterprise Services can help deliver cost-effective, efficient 
solutions for Washingtonians.                                         

A G R E E M E N T 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein, the parties 
agree as follows: 
 

Packet page 190 of 225



 

Enterprise Services (EAP) Interagency Agreement No. K8365 Page 2 
 
 

PURPOSE: The purpose of the Agreement is to allow the Enterprise Services Employee Assistance 
Program (EAP) to provide employee assistance services to Client Organization’s employees as described 
in Section 1.0, Scope of Services, in return for financial compensation. 
 
1. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

 
1.1 Client Organization Employees 

 
The following Client Organization employees are covered by this Agreement: 
• 345 = Total number of covered employees, which consists of: 

o 19 Administrative 
o 188 Certificated 
o 138 Classified/Exempt 

 
   The following Client Organization employees are *not* covered by this Agreement: 

o Substitutes, Contracted Staff, Seasonal, Temporary 
 

1.2 EAP Counseling Services 
 

1.2.1 EAP shall provide EAP Counseling services to management-referred or self-referred 
employees, and their adult household family members. For a Counseling case, the client 
is assigned an EAP provider who conducts an EAP Assessment in person, through virtual 
communication/telehealth, or by telephone over 1-3 sessions, which may include 
problem assessment, short-term problem-solving, support and guidance, development 
of an action plan, referrals, resources, and follow-up services as necessary. Each time a 
new problem arises and a client uses EAP Counseling services, a new Counseling case is 
created.  

 
1.2.2 EAP will inform Client Organization management of employee compliance with formal 

supervisory and/or formal human resources referrals in accordance with RCW 
41.04.730 and the EAP confidentiality policy. Formal referrals are those referrals in 
which EAP has been notified in advance by the supervisor or human resources 
professional that the employee has been referred for job performance problems. Self-
referrals are confidential as outlined in the EAP confidentiality policy. 

 
1.3 24/7 Telephone Support Services 

 
EAP provides access to telephonic EAP support and crisis counseling services 24 hours/day, 7 
days/week. The services are provided by EAP staff, or if staff are not immediately available, 
through an after-hours clinical answering service that can be reached through EAP’s primary 
phone line. 

 
1.4 Organizational Services 
 

EAP shall provide the following Services: Management Consultation, Educational and 
Promotional Services, and Critical Incident Response.  

 

Packet page 191 of 225



 

Enterprise Services (EAP) Interagency Agreement No. K8365 Page 3 
 
 

1.4.1    Management Consultation 
 

EAP offers management consultation services to Client Organization’s supervisors, 
managers, leaders, and human resource professionals to assist in the development of 
management skills or to assist with how to handle a particular situation with an 
employee or within the organization. 
 

1.4.2    Educational and Promotional Services  
 

EAP offers educational and promotional services to Client Organization, which may 
include Presentations, Trainings, or tabling at Health/Wellness/Benefits Fairs, 
delivered as follows: 

 
i Webinars Offered to the Public:  

 Client Organization’s employees may participate in any presentations and 
trainings offered by EAP via webinar, subject to space available.  

ii . Group Educational and Promotional Services:  

a. EAP offers various group educational and promotional services, including 
presentations on EAP’s current list of offerings and participation in 
health/benefit fairs. Group educational and promotional services could be 
provided virtually or on-site. 
 
As noted below, based on the number of covered employees, this Agreement 
includes a number of group hours that Client Organization may use toward 
scheduling virtual and on-site group educational/promotional services, at 
mutually agreed upon dates and times and at no additional charge except as 
provided below. A “group hour” is defined as one EAP provider delivering 
either one hour of presentation time or two hours of tabling time at a 
health/benefit fair. Group hours are to be used in 0.5 hour increments. Group 
hours are prorated for Agreements that are shorter than 24 months: 

• up to 249 employees: group hours not included in rate,  
• 250 to 499 employees: 2 group hours per biennium, 
• 500 to 999 employees: 4 group hours per biennium, 
• 1,000 to 2,999 employees: 6 group hours per biennium, 
• 3,000 to 4,999 employees: 10 group hours per biennium, 
• 5,000 or more employees: 16 group hours per biennium.  

 
b. Requesting a Group Educational/Promotional Service: To request a group 

educational/promotional service, Client Organization must contact EAP to 
arrange a consultation a minimum of six (6) weeks in advance before the 
desired date of service. If Client Organization requests an on-site group 
educational/promotional service, EAP will make every effort to find a 
qualified available service provider in our network who is located within 3 
hours one-way drive time (“local provider”) of the service delivery location.  

Packet page 192 of 225



 

Enterprise Services (EAP) Interagency Agreement No. K8365 Page 4 
 
 

If there is no qualified local provider available, EAP will offer virtual service 
delivery instead. If Client Organization declines virtual service delivery, Client 
Organization will incur additional charges for on-site service delivery.  EAP 
will make every effort to find a non-local qualified available service provider 
in our network. Client Organization is responsible for non-local service 
provider’s full travel costs in accordance with published Office of Financial 
Management travel and per diem rates. Client Organization may use available 
group hours to cover travel costs, at $130 per group hour, in 0.5 hour 
increments. 

c. Cancellation: In the event of the cancellation of a group 
education/promotional service by Client Organization, EAP requires notice of 
at least five (5) working days prior to the scheduled service, excluding 
emergencies. By providing this notice, Client Organization will not be charged 
(use group hours) for the cancelled service. 
 

d. Customization of Presentations in EAP’s Current Catalog: Customization of 
an EAP presentation is the alteration of existing presentation slides and/or 
content. Delivery of EAP presentations to Client Organization includes a 
standard level of customization, as determined by EAP using professional 
judgement and expertise. For customization requests beyond the standard 
level of customization, EAP will provide an estimate that includes the time 
needed to produce the requested customization and total cost. The hourly 
rate for EAP presentation customization services is $130 per hour. 
 

e. Creation of Presentations: On an as-available basis, EAP offers design services 
to create presentations that are not in EAP’s current presentation catalog, on 
subject matter within EAP’s scope and expertise. At Client Organization’s 
request, EAP will provide an estimate that includes the time needed to create 
the requested presentation and total cost. The hourly rate for EAP 
presentation creation services is $130 per hour. 

 
f. Additional Group Educational/Promotional Services: In the event that Client 

Organization requests group educational and promotional services that 
exceed the number of group hours included in this Agreement, on an as-
available basis EAP may offer additional group educational and promotional 
services. At Client Organization’s request, EAP will provide an estimate that 
includes the time needed and total cost to provide the requested services, 
including preparation, delivery of services and post-service delivery tasks. The 
hourly rate for additional EAP group educational and promotional services is 
$130 per hour plus full travel costs in accordance with published Office of 
Financial Management travel and per diem rates. 

     1.4.3   Critical Incident Response Services 
 

A critical incident is a sudden, unexpected event that significantly interferes with 
normal workplace functioning and is beyond the norm of what usually happens 
in that workplace, such as: traumatic death of an employee, violent event or 

Packet page 193 of 225



 

Enterprise Services (EAP) Interagency Agreement No. K8365 Page 5 
 
 

threat of violent event at the workplace, serious workplace accident, natural 
disaster, or substantial layoff/downsizing.  
 
EAP offers group critical incident response services on an as-available basis at a 
fee-for-service rate of $130.00 per service hour plus $50.00 per hour of travel. A 
“service hour” is defined as one EAP provider delivering one hour of critical 
incident response services for one site.  
 
In the unlikely event that EAP is unable to provide rapid and appropriate 
response, EAP will decline the request and provide a listing of independent, 
trained and qualified providers to Client Organization.  It is the Client 
Organization’s responsibility to negotiate services and payment to those 
providers. 
 

1.4.4   Services Outside of Scope 
 

Services outside of EAP’s scope include but are not limited to:  mediation, team 
building, organization development (OD), fitness for duty exams, and employee 
evaluations by a substance abuse professional (SAP). As appropriate, EAP will 
provide assessment, consultation and referral services. 

 
1.5 Work/Life Resources 
  

1.5.1  Access Work/Life Resources by logging into the Work/Life Resources website: to login, 
enter Client Organization’s unique Org Code: SHSD1 

1.5.2 Legal/Financial Benefit:  24/7 access to legal and financial consultants via toll-free phone 
to provide resources   for issues including but not limited to separation, debt, or adoption 
needs, with the exception of those involving disputes or actions between an 
employee/dependent and their employer or EAP or for business issues. These services 
can be accessed by covered employees and their adult family household members. 

 
i. The Legal Benefit allows participants to 

1. Speak with a legal consultant who gathers information regarding the 
client’s legal concern and determines which legal benefit best suits the 
client’s needs: telephonic advice or local attorney referral.  

2. Receive telephonic advice from a general practice attorney, or referral to 
a local attorney with the appropriate expertise for a free half-hour 
consultation. If additional assistance is required, in most cases the local 
attorney will offer a discount to their hourly fees.  Beyond the initial 30-
minute free consultation, negotiation of fees, number and duration of 
contacts shall be a matter between the Participant and the attorney.   

 
ii. The Financial Benefit allows participants to access a program of comprehensive 

financial support services including: 
1. Access to financial counseling services, including an appointment for a 

detailed telephonic consultation.  

Packet page 194 of 225

https://www.advantageengagement.com/1669/login_company.php


 

Enterprise Services (EAP) Interagency Agreement No. K8365 Page 6 
 
 

2. There is no limit to the length of the consultation or restrictions on 
repeated use of the service. 
 

1.5.3 Employee Support Website:  Online access to a wide range of resources regarding work 
and life topics for employees and their families, which includes: 
 Access to work-life content including information and resources to address emotional 

wellbeing, health and wellness, and workplace issues, as well as child care, elder care, 
adoption, education, legal, and financial needs. Content type including articles, 
resource links, financial calculators, searchable databases, audio and video files, and 
ready-to-use/DIY legal forms. 

 A diverse library of webinars and eLearning options, with a new online seminar added 
every month. 
 

1.6    EAP Access by Client Organization: 
 

All EAP services may be accessed by Client Organization or its employees via the EAP website at 
www.eap.wa.gov, or by calling EAP at 877-313-4455 tollfree or 360-407-9490. Client 
Organization can refer either through the supervisory process or through employee self-
referral.  Employee assistance services are also offered to adult household family members of 
the above covered employees.  

 
Human resource managers and officers, managers, and supervisors may refer employees to EAP 
for assistance for job performance and job-related behavioral problems or to fulfill an 
employee’s request for assistance. Additionally, employees may come to EAP voluntarily or self-
refer for assistance. 

   
1.7    Program Promotion: 
 

EAP furnishes unlimited promotional materials in print-ready digital format as requested, such 
as brochures, flyers, online newsletter subscriptions, and specialized topical resource guides 
and booklets. Client Organization will disseminate the materials to employees and promote the 
use of EAP. Client Organization may request EAP to attend health fairs and benefits fairs as 
available and in accordance with available group hours as listed in section 1.4.2. 
 

2. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE.   
Subject to its other provisions, the period of performance of this Agreement shall commence on 
July 1, 2023, and be completed on June 30, 2025, unless terminated sooner as provided in this 
Agreement, or extended through a properly executed amendment. 

 
3. COMPENSATION.  

Compensation for the services provided in accordance with this Agreement has been established 
under the terms of RCW 39.34.130. Payment for satisfactory performance of the work shall not 
exceed this amount unless the parties mutually agree in writing to a higher amount prior to the 
commencement of any work which will cause the maximum payment to be exceeded. 
Compensation for service(s) shall be based as described below:  
 

3.1 Rate 

Packet page 195 of 225

http://www.eap.wa.gov/


 

Enterprise Services (EAP) Interagency Agreement No. K8365 Page 7 
 
 

 
Compensation is calculated at a rate of $1.48 per employee per month (PEPM).  
 

3.2 Billing for contracted services 
 
Client Organization shall pay EAP the sum of $12,254.40 (345 employees x $1.48 PEPM x 24 
months) for the performance of all things necessary for or incidental to the work as set forth in 
Section 1.0, Scope of Services, of this Agreement.  
 
Enterprise Services shall submit an invoice to Client Organization in the amount of $6,127.20 on 
July 1, 2023, and $6,127.20 on July 1, 2024, for a total of $12,254.40 as stated above. 
 

3.3 Billing for additional services 
 
Costs for additional services and associated travel costs in accordance with Section 1.4.2 and 
Section 1.4.3 above will be billed by Enterprise Services per occurrence, if any.  

 
3.4 Payment 

 
Client Organization shall make payment by check, warrant or account transfer within 30 days of 
receipt of the invoice. 

 
  4. FUNDING CONTINGENCY.  
 In the event funding from state, federal, or other sources is withdrawn, reduced, or limited to the Client 

Organization in any way after the effective date of this Agreement and prior to completion of the work 
in this Agreement, Client Organization may: 
a. Terminate this Agreement with ten (10) days advance notice.  If this Agreement is terminated, the 

Client Organization shall be liable only for performance rendered or costs incurred by the Agency, 
on a prorated basis, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement prior to the effective date of 
termination.  Agency shall refund any prorated unused prepaid amount. 
 

b. Renegotiate the terms of the Agreement under those new funding limitations and conditions, 
 

c. After a review of project expenditures and deliverable status, extend the end date of this 
Agreement and postpone deliverables or portions of deliverables, or 
 

d. Pursue such other alternative as the parties mutually agree to writing.  
 

5. AGREEMENT MANAGEMENT.   

The parties hereby designate the following agreement administrators as the respective single points 
of contact for purposes of this Agreement, each of whom shall be the principal contact for business 
activities under this Agreement.  The parties may change administrators by written notice as set forth 
below.  Any notices required or desired shall be in writing and sent by U.S. mail, postage prepaid, or 
sent via email, and shall be sent to the respective addressee at the respective address or email address 
set forth below or to such other address or email address as the parties may specify in writing: 

 

Packet page 196 of 225



 

Enterprise Services (EAP) Interagency Agreement No. K8365 Page 8 
 
 

Enterprise Services Client Organization 
Attn: Randee Gibbons 
EAP Customer Experience Manager 
Employee Assistance Program 
Washington Dept. of Enterprise Services 
PO Box 41476 
Olympia, WA  98504-1476 
Tel:  360-407-9493 
Email:  randee.gibbons@des.wa.gov 

Attn: Shawn Lewis 
Executive Director of Administrative Services  
Steilacoom Historical School District 
511 Chambers Street 
Steilacoom, WA 98388 
Tel: 253-983-2233 
Email:  shlewis@steilacoom.k12.wa.us 
 

 

Notices shall be deemed effective upon the earlier of receipt, if mailed, or, if emailed, upon 
transmission, to the designated email address of said addressee. 

The Client Organization representative shall be responsible for working with EAP, approving billings 
and expenses submitted by EAP, and accepting any reports from EAP. 

The EAP representative shall be the contact person for all communications regarding the conduct of 
work under this Agreement. 

 
6. INDEPENDENT CAPACITY. 

The employees or agents of each party who are engaged in the performance of this Agreement shall 
continue to be employees or agents of that party and shall not be considered for any purpose to be 
employees or agents of the other party. 

 
7. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE. 

If for any cause either party does not fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under 
this Agreement, or if either party violates any of these terms and conditions, the aggrieved party 
will give the other party written notice of such failure or violation.  The responsible party will be 
given the opportunity to correct the violation or failure within 15 working days.  If the failure or 
violation is not corrected, this Agreement may be terminated immediately by written notice of 
the aggrieved party to the other. 

8. WAIVER. 
A failure by either party to exercise its rights under this Agreement shall not preclude that party 
from subsequent exercise of such rights and shall not constitute a waiver of any other rights under 
this Agreement.  Waiver of any default or breach shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any 
subsequent default or breach.  Any waiver shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms 
of this Agreement unless stated to be such in writing and signed by personnel authorized to bind 
each of the parties. 

9. SEVERABILITY. 
If any term or condition of this Agreement is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the validity 
of the other terms or conditions of this Agreement. 

10. RECORDS RETENTION. 

Packet page 197 of 225

mailto:randee.gibbons@des.wa.gov


 

Enterprise Services (EAP) Interagency Agreement No. K8365 Page 9 
 
 

a. AGREEMENT AVAILABILITY.  Prior to its entry into force, this Agreement shall be posted on the 
parties’ websites or other electronically retrievable public source as required by 
RCW 39.34.040. 

b. RECORDS RETENTION.  Each party shall each maintain records and other evidence that 
sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs expended by either party in 
the performance and payment of the services described herein.  These records shall be 
subject to inspection, review, or audit by personnel of both parties, other personnel duly 
authorized by either party, the Office of the State Auditor, and officials authorized by law.  
Such records shall be retained for a period of six (6) years following expiration or 
termination of this Agreement or final payment for any service placed against this 
Agreement, whichever is later; Provided, however, that if any litigation, claim, or audit is 
commenced prior to the expiration of this period, such period shall extend until all such 
litigation, claims, or audits have been resolved. 

c. PUBLIC INFORMATION.  This Agreement and all related records are subject to public 
disclosure as required by Washington’s Public Records Act, RCW chapter 42.56.  Neither 
party shall release any record that would, in the judgment of the party, be subject to an 
exemption from disclosure under the Public Records Act, without first providing notice to 
the other party within ten (10) business days of the receipt of the request.  The parties 
will discuss appropriate actions to be taken, including release of the requested 
information, seeking a protective order, or other action prior to the release of records.  
Should one party choose to seek a protective order, it shall do so at its sole expense. 

 
11. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PARTIES.   

Each party to this Agreement assumes responsibility for claims and/or damages to persons and/or 
property resulting from any act or omission on the part of itself, its employees, or its agents.  
Neither party assumes any responsibility to the other party for any third party claims. 
 

12. DISPUTE RESOLUTION.   
The parties shall use their best, good faith efforts cooperatively and collaboratively to resolve any 
dispute that may arise in connection with this Agreement as efficiently as practicable, and at the 
lowest possible level with authority to resolve such dispute.  The parties shall make a good faith 
effort to continue without delay to carry out their respective responsibilities under this 
Agreement while attempting to resolve any such dispute.  If, however, a dispute persists and 
cannot be resolved, it may be escalated within each organization.  In such situation, upon notice 
by either party, each party, within five (5) business days shall reduce its description of the dispute 
to writing and deliver it to the other party.  The receiving party then shall have three (3) business 
days to review and respond in writing.  In the event that the parties cannot then agree on a 
resolution of the dispute, the parties shall schedule a conference between the respective senior 
managers of each organization to attempt to resolve the dispute.  In the event the parties cannot 
agree on a mutual resolution within fifteen (15) business days, the parties shall abide by the 
Governor’s dispute resolution process (RCW 43.17.330), if applicable, or collectively shall appoint 
a third party to evaluate and resolve the dispute and such dispute resolution shall be final and 
binding on the parties hereto. 
 

13. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE.   

Packet page 198 of 225



 

Enterprise Services (EAP) Interagency Agreement No. K8365 Page 10 
 
 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, either party may terminate this Agreement upon 
thirty (30) calendar days prior written notification.  Upon such termination, the parties shall be 
liable only for performance rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement prior to the effective date of such termination. 
 

14. SITE SECURITY. 
While on Enterprise Services/EAP premises, the Client Organization, its agents, employees, or 
Subcontractors shall comply with the Enterprise Services/EAP security policies and regulations. 

15. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

a. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW.  The Parties shall comply with all applicable law. 

b. INTEGRATED AGREEMENT.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and 
understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter and supersedes all prior 
negotiations, representations, and understandings between them.  There are no 
representations or understandings of any kind not set forth herein. 

c. AMENDMENT OR MODIFICATION.  Except as set forth herein, this Agreement may not be 
amended or modified except in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of 
each party hereto. 

d. AUTHORITY.  Each party to this Agreement, and each individual signing on behalf of each 
party, hereby represents and warrants to the other that it has full power and authority to 
enter into this Agreement and that its execution, delivery, and performance of this 
Agreement has been fully authorized and approved, and that no further approvals or 
consents are required to bind such party. 

e. NO AGENCY.  The parties agree that no agency, partnership, or joint venture of any kind 
shall be or is intended to be created by or under this Agreement.  Neither party is an agent 
of the other party nor authorized to obligate it. 

f. GOVERNING LAW.  The validity, construction, performance, and enforcement of this 
Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Washington, without regard to its choice of law rules. 

g. JURISDICTION & VENUE.  In the event that any action is brought to enforce any provision of 
this Agreement, the parties agree to submit to exclusive in personam jurisdiction in 
Thurston County Superior Court for the State of Washington and agree that in any such 
action venue shall lie exclusively at Olympia, Washington. 

h. EXHIBITS.  All exhibits referred to herein are deemed to be incorporated in this Agreement 
in their entirety. 

i. CAPTIONS & HEADINGS.  The captions and headings in this Agreement are for convenience 
only and are not intended to, and shall not be construed to, limit, enlarge, or affect the 
scope or intent of this Agreement nor the meaning of any provisions hereof. 

j. ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES.  A signed copy of this Agreement or any other ancillary agreement 
transmitted by facsimile, email, or other means of electronic transmission shall be 
deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original executed copy of this 
Agreement or such other ancillary agreement for all purposes. 

Packet page 199 of 225



 

Enterprise Services (EAP) Interagency Agreement No. K8365 Page 11 
 
 

k. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original and all of which counterparts together shall constitute 
the same instrument which may be sufficiently evidenced by one counterpart.  Execution 
of this Agreement at different times and places by the parties shall not affect the validity 
thereof so long as all the parties hereto execute a counterpart of this Agreement. 

 
16. ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN.  

This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. No other 
understanding, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed 
to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto. 

 
 
EXECUTED AND EFFECTIVE as of the day and date first above written. 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
A WASHINGTON STATE INSTITUTION 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
DEPARTMENT OF ENTERPRISE SERVICES 

By: Shawn Lewis 

Title: Executive Director of Administrative 
Services 

 

Signature:  __________________________ 

Date: _____________________________ 
 

By: Randee Gibbons 

Title: Customer Experience Manager, 
Employee Assistance Program 

 

Signature:  __________________________ 

Date: _____________________________ 
 

 
 

6/13/2023

Packet page 200 of 225



 
 
 

 

 

DRAFT 
Steilacoom Historical School District Board Meeting Schedule 2023-24 

Meeting Date Meeting Type Location Time 

Wednesday, 09/20/23 Regular Business Meeting Anderson Island Elementary School 5:30 P.M. 
    

Wednesday, 10/18/23 Regular Business Meeting Pioneer Middle School Library 6:00 P.M. 
    

Wednesday, 11/15/23 Regular Business Meeting Steilacoom High School Library 6:00 P.M. 
    

Wednesday, 12/20/23 Regular Business Meeting Pioneer Middle School Multi-Purpose Room 6:00 P.M. 
    

Wednesday, 01/17/24 Regular Business Meeting Steilacoom High School Library 6:00 P.M. 
    

Wednesday, 02/21/24 Regular Business Meeting Pioneer Middle School Multi-Purpose Room 6:00 P.M. 
    

Wednesday, 03/20/24 Regular Business Meeting Steilacoom High School Library 6:00 P.M. 
    

Wednesday, 04/17/24 Regular Business Meeting Pioneer Middle School Library 6:00 P.M. 
    

Wednesday, 05/15/24 Regular Business Meeting Steilacoom High School Library 6:00 P.M. 
    

Wednesday, 06/12/24* Regular Business Meeting Pioneer Middle School Library 6:00 P.M. 
    

Wednesday, 07/17/24 Regular Business Meeting Steilacoom High School Library 6:00 P.M. 
    

Wednesday, 08/21/24 Regular Business Meeting Pioneer Middle School Library 6:00 P.M. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

*June Regular Business Meeting scheduled for 2nd Wednesday of the month due to federal holiday on June 19. 

 

Approved XX/XX/XXXX 

Packet page 201 of 225



 OF DIRECTORS 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Board Meeting Date:  June 21, 2023 

 
Strategic Focus Area 

☐  Achieve       

☒   Support  

☐  Connect 

☐  Plan 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The district posted our SHS Assistant Principal positions on May 24, 2023, marketing broadly, through 
the Washington Association of School Administrators and Association of Washington School 
Principals. The hiring administrator is Jake Tyrrell, the Interim High School Principal. 
 
Of the 36 applicants, 20 were recommended to the SHS Screening Committee. The screening 
committee conducted a comprehensive, anonymous review of each applicant and recommended six 
(6) applicants for the Interview Team. 
 
Interviews were conducted on Friday, June 16th and included a staff panel, a student panel and a 
writing prompt. Over 19 certificated and classified SHS staff members participated in the process, as 
well as a panel of current students. 
 
Through this process, in accordance with Board policy 5000, we are recommending Tracy Garza and 
Charlie Hilen as the candidates for the High School Assistant Principal positions.   
 
Tracy comes to us with more than 13 years of experience in education with Tukwila SD and Kent 
SD. In her most recent position, she was an Assistant Principal at Kentwood High School. She 
holds a Principal certificate as well as teaching certificate with ELA, Middle Level-Humanities, and 
Social Studies endorsements. She holds a Bachelor’s Degree from PLU, a Master’s from Seattle 
University. 
 
Charlie comes to us with 12 years of experience in education with Mercer Island SD and Sumner-
Bonney Lake SD. In his most recent position, he was an Associate Administrator at Bethel Middle 
School. He holds a Principal certificate and multiple CTE endorsements. His Bachelor’s degree is 
from Washington State University and his Master’s Degree is from Eastern Washington University. 
 
We are confident in their experience, skills, and abilities, and enthusiastically recommend their 
hiring to the Board of Directors for approval. 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet page 202 of 225



 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 

It is the recommendation of the Superintendent to approve the hiring of Tracy Garza and 
Charles Hilen as Assistant Principals at Steilacoom High School. 

 
 
 
 
Report prepared by: Susanne Beauchaine, Executive Director of HR 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
  

Packet page 203 of 225



 OF DIRECTORS 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Board Meeting Date: June 21, 2023 

Strategic Focus Area 

☐  Achieve       

☒   Support  

☒  Connect 

☒  Plan 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Student Fees: 
For the 2023-24 school year, the district recommends changes to the Student Fee 
Schedule as follows: 

• Increase the ASB Card fee from $25 to $50 
• Increase the Athletic fee from $50 to $75 for Bowling, Cross Country, Golf, 

Swimming and Tennis 
• Increase the Athletic fee from $75 to $100 for Wrestling 
• Increase the Athletic fee from $100 to $150 for Football 
• Change the repair/replacement costs for technology based on current supply 

costs 
• Decrease the Club Fees for ASL Club and Literature Club to $0 
• Increase the Club Fee for FCCLA from $20 to $25 

 
The increases in ASB Card and Athletic Fees are recommended due to a shifting of 
athletic related costs from the general fund to the ASB.  Specifically, rental fees for 
swimming, golf bowling are going to be shared between the General Fund and the 
ASB, the ASB will be paying for athletic bus transportation, WIAA and SPSL league 
membership, and coaches workshops.  These costs have been paid for by the district 
over the past several years. 
 
These changes have been reviewed with the affected coaches and club advisors and 
the funding has been incorporated into the overall proposed ASB budget.   
 
Facility Fees: 
For the 2023-24 school year, the District recommends changes to the Facility Fee 
Schedule as indicated on the accompanying schedule.  While there are a variety of 
changes recommended for Groups 2 and 3, the intent is to create more consistency and 
clarity to the fee schedule.  For instance, it was difficult to understand the difference 
in cost for the elementary cafeteria/stage from the multipurpose room/stage.  The new 
schedule has both these costs at the same dollar value. 

Packet page 204 of 225

mailto:rburge@kcda.org


 
The definitions of each group can  be found in District Procedure 4260P, but are also 
included in this document for reference.  Note that the district is not recommending 
any changes to the fees charged for Group 1 in the 2023-24 proposal. 
 
Group 1 - School or Child Related Groups or Government Agencies or Programs  

• 1A The official programs and activities of the schools in the district (ex: 
Associated Student Body (ASB), curricular and extracurricular student groups, 
district departments)  

• 1B Government agencies or programs that offer opportunities for civic 
participation (ex: Scouts, PTA, 4-H, United States Military Armed Forces, Job 
Corps, Peace Corps)  

• 1C City or Town sponsored recreation groups/Student activity groups that are 
sponsored by local government agencies (ex: City Parks and Recreation, Town 
youth programs)  

• 1D District non-profit youth organizations or SHSD oriented clubs/groups 
(groups with students that reside within the school district boundaries. Proof 
that 75% of participants are district enrolled students.)  

Group 2 – Non-Profit, Non-Local Groups 
• 2A Non-local, non-profit youth activities (groups with students that reside 

outside the district boundaries) 
• 2B Non-profit adult organizations (ex: colleges, religious institutions, adult 

athletic groups)  
 
Group 3 – Commercial Enterprises  

• 3A Profit / private events (ex: organizations that charge an admission and/or 
participation fees, business corporation events, weddings, receptions, private 
parties, fairs, semiprofessional groups) 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
I move approval of the 2023-24 fee schedules as proposed. 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Shawn Lewis, Executive Director 
_______________________________________________________________________________  

Packet page 205 of 225



School Field Trips Price varies Lost or Damaged Equipment
Replacement or              

Repair Cost

NSF Check Fee 20.00 Lost or Damaged Library or Textbook Replacement Cost

Online Payment Convenience Fees No Charge Chromebook fees Next page

Yearbook-subject to vendor pricing approx. 35.00 Planner 5.00

ASB Card required for all ASB activities 15.00 Athletic Fee (except Football) 45.00

Builder's Club 0.00 Baseball Uniform - 1st Year 36.00

ASB Clubs 15.00 Athletic Fee Football 75.00

ASB Sponsored Field Trip Price Varies Athletic Fee Football, sibling 50.00

Choir Fee 15.00 Dance Team Uniform (vendor pricing) Price Varies

Choir Uniform Rental 25.00

Yearbook-subject to vendor pricing approx. 70.00 Parking 50.00

Credit Enhancement or Retrieval Price Varies Transcript (certified only-each) 6.50

Gate Ticket - Adults and Students w/o ASB Card 6.00 Gate Ticket - Seniors (62+) 2.00

Gate Ticket - Visiting Students w/ASB Card, Military w/ID 4.00 Family Pass 12.00

Gate Ticket - All K-5 Students 2.00 Steilly Pass* Varies per season/sport

ASB Card required for all Clubs and Sports 50.00

Anime Club 10.00 FCCLA 25.00

Art 0.00 Frisbee 0.00

ASL Club 0.00 GSA 0.00

Band 25.00 HOSA 25.00

Band Uniform Rental 25.00 Key Club 15.00

Cheer 50.00 Leadership 15.00

Choir 25.00 Literature 0.00

Choir Uniform Rental 25.00 Math Team 5.00

Dance/Drill Team 50.00 National Honor Society first year 10.00

DECA 25.00 National Honor Society subsequent years 5.00

Digital Gaming 5.00 Spanish Honor Society 5.00

Drama Club 5.00 Student 2 Student 0.00

Dungeons and Dragons 0.00 Wet Plate Engineering 0.00

Environmental Stewardship 0.00 Yearbook 0.00

Baseball/Fastpitch 75.00 Soccer 75.00

Basketball 75.00 Swimming 75.00

Bowling 75.00 Tennis 75.00

Cross Country 75.00 Track 75.00

Football 150.00 Volleyball 75.00

Golf 75.00 Wrestling 100.00

Athletic Fees/ASB Card Also Required

ASB Fee Waiver Eligibility                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Available for any student who qualifies for free or reduced lunch through the National Lunch Program                                                        

AND  the family authorizes the district to use this information for fee waivers.

ASB Fees and Extracurricular Participation (Fee Waiver Eligible)

Club Fees/ASB Card Also Required

STEILACOOM HIGH SCHOOL

Athletic Event Prices (Free for SHSD Students with an ASB Card)

Steilacoom Historical School District 2023-2024 Student Fee Schedule
DISTRICTWIDE

PIONEER MIDDLE SCHOOL

ASB Fees and Extracurricular Participation (Fee Waiver Eligible)

Packet page 206 of 225



First Incident (unless intentional)
Lesser of $25 or 

repair cost
Second Incident

Repair Cost or 250.00 to 
Replace

Bezel (Screen frame) 55.00 Keyboard 95.00

Camera Lens 75.00 Key (Individual) 25.00

Case (Top or Bottom) 85.00 Power Cord 25.00

IMIE Device (Hotspot) 150.00 Protective Case 25.00

Touchpad 75.00 Screen - Non-touch 60.00

Hinge 25.00 Screen - Touch 150.00

Breakfast (K-5) 2.25 Breakfast (6-12) 2.75

Lunch (K-5) 3.50 Lunch (6-12) 3.75

Repair/Replacement Costs

Note: Repairs of Charging Ports and Headphone Jacks are not possible.

MEAL PRICES

CHROMEBOOK FEES
Repairs or Theft (Police report required for theft)

Packet page 207 of 225



Facility Hourly Rental Fee Group 1 Group 2 Group 3

Standard Classroom Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $25 $50 $10 $0

Library/Specialized/Commons/Large Classroom Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $25 $50 $0 ($10)

Computer Lab/Classroom Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $50 $125 ($40) $0

Music Classroom Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $25 $50 ($5) ($20)

Professional Development Center (PDC) Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $50 $125 $0 $25

Elementary Buildings

Gym/Multi-Purpose Room/Stage Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $25 $125 ($5) $25

Common/Cafeteria/Stage Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $25 $125 ($25) $0

Pioneer Middle School $0 $0

Baseball & Practice Fields $5*** $50 $125 $20 $65

Football Field & Track $15*** $50 $125 $0 $55

Gymnasium Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $50 $125 $20 $0

Commons/Cafeteria/Stage Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $50 $125 $0 $0

Commons/Cafeteria/Stage w/Kitchen Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $50 $125 $0 $0

Steilacoom High School

Commons/Cafeteria Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $50 $125 $20 $25

Commons/Cafeteria w/Kitchen Custodian/Food Service Costs $50 $125 $0 $0

Fitness/Weight Room/Wrestling Area Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $50 $125 $0 $55

Auditorium/Pods Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $50 $125 $15 $25

Auxilliary Gym Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $50 $125 $10 $0

Gymnasium - Recreational Practices Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $50 $125 $15 $0

Gymnasium - Full Facility Games Custodian/Facility Attendant Costs $50 $125 $0 ($15)

Stadium (includes scoreboard) $60*** $100 $200 $5 $0

Stadium - w/ scoreboard & lights $85*** $120 $250 $0 $0

Baseball/ Fast Pitch Field (no scoreboard) $30*** $50 $125 $0 $55

Baseball/Fast Pitch Field w/Scoreboard $40*** $50 $125 ($5) $50

Tennis Courts $15*** $50 $125 $0 $55

Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 Facility Fee and Rate Schedule
2023-24 School Year

Increases/Decreases

Packet page 208 of 225



EXPLANATION OF CHARGES
*    Wages for personnel, specialized equipment, and custodians are in addition to hourly rates, when required.
**    Custodian/Facility Attendant two hour minimum is included in hourly rate.  Any additional time above the two hours will be charged at $35.00 per 
hour or an overtime rate depending on time of usage (refer to Note 1 &2)
***  Amount charged per use with three hour maximum. Any additional time will be charged hourly.
The Custodian/Facility Attendant is responsible for opening, unlocking, locking and closing the facility, unless specified in written agreement with 
additional costs.
Group 1 - Custodian/Facility Attendant costs after hours will be charged with a two hour minimum.
Group 2 and 3 - Custodian/Facility Attendant costs will be based on actual utilization with a two-hour minimum - $35.00 per hour.
Kitchens:  Rental of kitchens requires a food service staff member in attendance - $25.00 per hour.
NOTE:
1.  Overtime rates are applied to facility use during weekday non-custodian coverage hours and Saturdays.
2.  Double-time rates are applied on Sundays and District holidays. Maintenance, Grounds, and Custodians rates are double time and a half.
3.  Computer rooms, special equipment, stadium, and baseball fields require a $500.00 security deposit (paid in advance by check to the District's Financial 
Office) for damage costs, in the event of no damage, will be returned to the renter at the conclusion of the
event.

Packet page 209 of 225



 OF DIRECTORS 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Board Meeting Date: June 21, 2023 

Strategic Focus Area 

☐  Achieve       

☒   Support  

☒  Connect 

☒  Plan 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Policy 6881 establishes the requirements for declaring district equipment, supplies, furniture and 
other district property obsolete and/or surplus. 
 
The current policy requires board approval for any item that is valued at $500 or more or multiple 
items that are valued in excess of $1,000.   The current policy would also require placing a legal ad 
in the News Tribune each time the district was declaring items surplus.  These legal ads now cost 
$250. 
 
The updated policy raises the threshold for board approval to require only those items that are 
consistent with the district’s capital asset policy (Policy 6801), or valued in excess of $5,000 to be 
approved by the board.  It would also require multiple items that are valued at $20,000 to receive 
board approval.  Items falling below this limit would need to be approved by the Superintendent.  
Land always requires board approval and is not subject to this policy.   
 
The updated policy also would require notice through a legal ad only once per year, with information 
on where surplus property information will be posted on the district website and where to find district 
procedures for handling surplus equipment. 
 
If approved, the district would revise the accompanying procedures to ensure they meet legal 
requirements and they are consistent with common industry practice.  For instance, the current 
policy does not contemplate that technology may be recycled and that the recycle value may be 
higher than selling the components through the state surplus process. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
I move approval of the revisions to Policy 6881. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Shawn Lewis, Executive Director 
_______________________________________________________________________________  

Packet page 210 of 225

mailto:rburge@kcda.org


Page 1 of 2 

Policy No. 6881 
Management Support 

 
DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT AND/OR MATERIALS 

 
The board has the authority to declare equipment, supplies, furniture and other district personal 
property obsolete and/or surplus.  The superintendent will establish procedures for their sale, 
trade or disposal except that the board must approve of any sales where: 
The board must approve of any surplus declaration where: 

A. A single unit item has a current value in excess of $5005,000; and/or 
 

B. Multiple items of the same type of equipment or material that have a total unit fair market 
value in excess of $120,000. 

   
The superintendent must approve any sales or disposal of any equipment or materials declared 
surplus not requiring board approval. 
 
Surplus or obsolete books or other reading materials will be disposed of as follows: 

A. If the reading materials are estimated to have value as reading materials in excess of 
$l,000, they will be sold at public auction to the person submitting the highest reasonable 
bid following publication of notice of the auction in a newspaper with a general circula-
tion in the district; 
  

B. If no reasonable bids are submitted or if the reading materials are estimated to have value 
as reading materials of $l,000 or less, the district may directly negotiate the sale of the 
reading materials to a public or private entity; or 
  

C. If the reading materials are determined to have no value as reading materials or if no pur-
chaser is found, the reading materials may be recycled or destroyed. 
 

Prior to disposingThe superintendent will establish procedures for their sale, trade or disposal of 
any surplus texts, other books, equipment, and materials or relocatable facilities,. Prior to the be-
ginning of each school year,  the superintendent will serve written notice in a newspaper of gen-
eral circulation in the school district and to any public school district or private school in Wash-
ington state annually requesting such notice. All schools on the list will be notified in writing of 
the materials and district’s intent to surplus equipment, supplies, furniture, and other district 
property that is available.obsolete and/or surplus. The material or equipment will be sold to any 
interested public or private school at its depreciated cost or fair market value, whichever is 
greater. Students will have priority innotice will provide information on where surplus property 
information will be posted on the district website and district procedures established by the pur-
chase of texts. superintendent.  
 
Disposition of such surplus property to parties other than public or private schools may take 
place thirty days after writtenboth the surplus property is listed on the district website and the an-
nual notice is served as required. 
 
The preceding notice requirements do not apply to the loan, lease, sale or transfer of assistive de-
vices for the use or benefit of children with disabilities, their parents, or any public or private 

Packet page 211 of 225



Page 2 of 2 

Policy No. 6881 
Management Support 

nonprofit agency providing education, health or rehabilitation services to individuals with disa-
bilities.  Such devices do not need to be declared surplus. The sale or transfer of such devices 
will be recorded and based on the item’s depreciated value. The district will establish and main-
tain an inventory of assistive technology devices whose value exceeds $100, and for each device 
will establish a value that will be adjusted annually to reflect depreciation.  
“Assistive device” means any item, piece of equipment, or product system, whether acquired 
commercially off-the-shelf, modified or customized, that is used to increase, maintain, or im-
prove functional capabilities of children with disabilities. 
 
Funds derived from the rental, sale or lease of student transportation equipment will be placed 
into the transportation vehicle fund. Funds derived from the sale of personal property will be 
placed into the general fund. 
 
Legal References: RCW 28A.155.160  Assistive devices-Interagency 

cooperative agreements-Definitions 
 RCW 28A.335.060 Surplus school property — Rental, lease 

or use of — Disposition of moneys 
received from 

 RCW  28A.335.090 Conveyance and acquisition of property  
— Management — Appraisal 

 RCW  28A.335.180 Surplus texts and other educational aids, 
notice of availability — Student 
priority as to texts 

 RCW 28A.335.205 Assistive devices — Transfer for benefit 
of children with disabilities — 
Record, inventory 

 RCW  39.33.070 School districts and libraries — Disposal 
of obsolete or surplus reading 
materials — Procedures 

 
 WAC  392-143-050 Resold School Buses 
 

 
Adoption Date: 2.27.08 
Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 
Revised: 6.24.10; 3.11.15 

Packet page 212 of 225

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.155.160
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.335.060
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.335.090
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.335.180
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.335.205
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=39.33.070
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=392-143-050


 OF DIRECTORS 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Board Meeting Date: June 21, 2023 

Strategic Focus Area 

☐  Achieve       

☒   Support  

☒  Connect 

☒  Plan 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The board requested information regarding the potential of a capital levy going before voters in 
November 2023.  Based on this request, staff worked with the district’s bond counsel to provide an 
“example draft” of a capital levy resolution.   This resolution is for discussion purposes only. 
 
The following significant items will be discussed with the board during the presentation: 
 

1. The boards interest to maintain a steady and predictable tax rate in the 2024 tax year would 
result in a capital levy amount of roughly $6,000,000. 

 
2. Capital levies can be for terms of 2 to 4 years, but there is no minimum or maximum dollar 

threshold for each year. For instance, the first year could be $6,000,000 and the second 
year could be for any amount from $1 up to an amount set by the board. 
 

 
3. The example shows the amount of collection that would be expected for ten cents per 

thousand in years 2 through 6.  These are meant to provide the board an indication of scale.  
In 2025, ten cents would provide $580,000 and one dollar would provide $5.8 million.  The 
board could set a rate or a dollar value target for each year. 

 
4. The individual projects listed are examples only.  These are intended to show that capital 

levies can be used for any capital purpose, which could include paying off the non-voted 
debt incurred for the McNeil Street property. 
 

 
5. Unlike bonds which require a 60% super majority, capital levies only require a 50% yes vote. 

   
6. Unlike bonds which allow districts to borrow for large projects, capital levies would not be 

feasible for projects such as the new elementary school or high school projects that were on 
the prior bond proposals.  Capital levies could fund smaller projects based on the dollar 
value provided annually by the levy.  
 

 
7. The deadline for passing a resolution and providing required documents to the County 

Elections department for the November election is August 1st.  These documents would 
include the resolution, a resolution cover sheet, and explanatory statement provided by our 
bond counsel, and a committee member appointment form (for For and Against 
Committees). 

Packet page 213 of 225

mailto:rburge@kcda.org


 
The district could provide the required documents to the board in time to meet all reporting 
requirements if provided direction by July 1.  Staff would need one month to ensure that all notice 
requirements were met and that draft documents were posted for public review in advance of a 
public hearing and consideration by the board prior to August 1st. 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
This Item is for Information and Discussion purposes only.  No board action is required at this time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Shawn Lewis, Executive Director 
_______________________________________________________________________________  

Packet page 214 of 225



FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY 
 
 
 
 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS AND TECHNOLOGY LEVY 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. [__________] 
 
 

A RESOLUTION of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom 
Historical School District No. 1, Pierce County, Washington, 
providing for the submission to the qualified electors of the District 
at a special election to be held therein on November 7, 2023, of the 
proposition of whether excess taxes should be levied of $6,000,000 
in 2023 for collection in 2024, $580,000 in 2024 for collection in 
2025, $600,000 in 2025 for collection in 2026, $620,000 in 2026 
for collection in 2027, $640,000 in 2027 for collection in 2028, and 
$660,000 in 2028 for collection in 2029, said excess taxes to 
support the renovation, expansion and improvement of school 
facilities, and for safety and technology improvements to meet the 
current and future needs of District students. 

 
 
 
 
 

ADOPTED [_______ ___], 2023 
 
 

PREPARED BY: 
PACIFICA LAW GROUP LLP 

Seattle, Washington 
 

Packet page 215 of 225



RESOLUTION NO. [__________] 
 
 

A RESOLUTION of the Board of Directors of the Steilacoom 
Historical School District No. 1, Pierce County, Washington, 
providing for the submission to the qualified electors of the District 
at a special election to be held therein on November 7, 2023, of the 
proposition of whether excess taxes should be levied of $6,000,000 
in 2023 for collection in 2024, $580,000 in 2024 for collection in 
2025, $600,000 in 2025 for collection in 2026, $620,000 in 2026 
for collection in 2027, $640,000 in 2027 for collection in 2028, and 
$660,000 in 2028 for collection in 2029, said excess taxes to 
support the renovation, expansion and improvement of school 
facilities, and for safety and technology improvements to meet the 
current and future needs of District students. 

 

 WHEREAS, the educational facilities of Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1, 

Pierce County, Washington (the “District”), including its technology facilities, are in need of 

repair, modernization, improvements and expansion to meet the current and future educational 

needs of its students (as further defined herein, the “Projects”); and 

 WHEREAS, funds available to the District are insufficient to enable the District to 

implement such Projects; and 

 WHEREAS, in order to support the cost of these Projects as found necessary by the 

Board of Directors (the “Board”), it is deemed advisable that the District levy a tax upon all the 

taxable property within the District in excess of the annual tax the District is permitted by law to 

levy without a vote of the people, such levy to be made for six years commencing in 2023 for 

collection in the school years 2023–2024 through 2029–2030, inclusive, as authorized by Article 

VII, Section 2 of the State Constitution and RCW 84.52.053; and 

 WHEREAS, the question of whether or not such excess tax may be levied must be 

submitted to the qualified electors of the District for their ratification or rejection; and 

Packet page 216 of 225



 -2-  

 WHEREAS, the conditions here and above set forth require the holding of a special 

election in the District; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1, PIERCE COUNTY, 

WASHINGTON, as follows: 

 Section 1.  Findings. The Board hereby finds and declares that the welfare of the students 

and other residents of the District requires the District to carry out the Projects as hereinafter 

provided, at the time or times and in the order deemed most necessary and advisable by the 

Board. 

 Section 2.  Capital Projects.  The Projects the District will finance with proceeds from the 

excess property tax levies shall include:  

 (a) Repayment of $4 million in non-voted debt incurred to purchase land for a future 

elementary school. 

 (b)  Capital improvements to District facilities, including: (1) installation of a new 

HVAC system at Cherrydale Elementary School; (2) adding a modular classroom to Anderson 

Island Elementary School; (3) conducting traffic studies and drafting traffic improvement plans 

at each District elementary school and Steilacoom High School; (4) providing technology system 

improvements in all District schools and the District office; (5) making necessary safety and 

security improvements at all District schools; and (6) making such other capital expenditures as 

the Board finds necessary.  The District may repay any obligations hereafter incurred for the 

foregoing purposes. 

 If available funds are sufficient, the District shall acquire, construct, equip and make 

other capital improvements to the facilities of the District, all as the Board of Directors finds 

Packet page 217 of 225



 -3-  

necessary; provided that such funds may be used only to support the construction, 

modernization, replacement, and remodeling of school facilities or implementation of the 

District’s technology facilities plan. 

 (c) Paying incidental costs incurred in connection with carrying out and 

accomplishing the foregoing. Such costs shall be deemed part of the Projects and shall include, 

but are not limited to: payments for fiscal and legal expenses; establishing and funding accounts; 

necessary and related engineering, architectural, planning, consulting, permitting, inspection and 

testing costs; administrative and relocation expenses; site improvement; demolition; and other 

similar activities or purposes, all as deemed necessary and advisable by the Board and permitted 

by law.  

 The Projects, or any portion or portions thereof, shall be acquired or made insofar as is 

practicable with available money and in such order of time as shall be deemed necessary and 

advisable by the Board. The Board shall determine the application of available money between 

the various parts of the Projects so as to accomplish, as near as may be, all of the Projects. The 

Board shall determine the exact order, extent and specifications for the Projects. The Projects are 

to be more fully described in the plans and specifications to be prepared by the District’s 

architects and engineers and to be filed with the District. 

 If the District shall determine that it has become impracticable to accomplish any of such 

improvements or portions thereof by reason of changed conditions or needs, incompatible 

development, costs substantially in excess of those estimated, or acquisition by a superior 

governmental authority, the District shall not be required to accomplish such improvement and 

may apply levy proceeds as set forth in this section.  If any or all of the improvements have been 

completed, or their completion duly provided for, or their completion found to be impractical, 

Packet page 218 of 225



 -4-  

the District may apply the levy proceeds or any portion thereof to other portions of the 

improvements or to other capital purposes of the District, as the District in its discretion shall 

determine.  Notwithstanding any provision of this resolution to the contrary, levy proceeds may 

only be used to support the construction, modernization or remodeling of school facilities or 

implementation of the District’s technology facilities plan. 

 Section 3.  Authorization of Levies.  The Board hereby finds and declares that the best 

interests of the District require submission to the District’s qualified electors, for their ratification 

or rejection at a special election on November 7, 2023, of the proposition whether the District 

shall make the Capital Fund Project levies described herein.  For the purpose of providing funds 

necessary for the needs described in Section 2 above, the Pierce County Auditor, as ex officio 

supervisor of elections in Pierce County, is hereby requested to call and conduct such special 

election to be held by all mail-in ballot within the District on such day and to submit to the 

qualified electors of the District for their approval or rejection, a proposition providing for tax 

levies for the Capital Projects Fund for six years, commencing in 2024, producing dollar 

amounts at estimated tax rates per thousand dollars of assessed value to produce such amounts, 

in excess of the maximum amount tax levy permitted by law to be levied within the District 

without a vote of the electors, all as follows: 

 A. $6,000,000, said levy to be made in 2023 for collection in 2024;  

 B. $580,000, said levy to be made in 2024 for collection in 2025;  

 C. $600,000, said levy to be made in 2025 for collection in 2026;  

 D. $620,000, said levy to be made in 2026 for collection in 2027;  

 E. $640,000, said levy to be made in 2027 for collection in 2028; and 

 F. $660,000, said levy to be made in 2028 for collection in 2029. 

Packet page 219 of 225



 -5-  

The estimated levy rate depends upon the final dollar amount of assessed value of the property 

within the District.  At this time, based upon information provided by the Pierce County 

Assessor’s office, the estimated levy rate for the 2024 levy is $1.09 per thousand dollars of 

assessed valuation, the estimated levy rate for the 2025 levy is $0.10 per thousand dollars of 

assessed valuation, the estimated levy rate for the 2026 levy is $0.10 per thousand dollars of 

assessed valuation, the estimated levy rate for the 2027 levy is $0.10 per thousand dollars of 

assessed valuation, the estimated levy rate for the 2028 levy is $0.10 per thousand dollars of 

assessed valuation, and the estimated levy rate for the 2029 levy is $0.10 per thousand dollars of 

assessed valuation.  The exact levy rate shall be adjusted based upon the actual assessed value of 

the property within the District at the time of the levy. 

 Section 4.  Approval of Form of Ballot.  The Secretary of the Board of Directors is 

hereby authorized and directed to certify said proposition to the Pierce County Auditor, as ex 

officio supervisor of elections in Pierce County, substantially in the following form: 

PROPOSITION NO. [__] 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS AND TECHNOLOGY LEVY 
 

The Board of Directors of Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 adopted 
Resolution [_________] concerning a proposition for a capital levy. The 
proposition would authorize the District to levy the following excess taxes on all 
taxable property within the District to renovate, expand and improve existing 
facilities of the District, repay an outstanding obligation incurred to purchase a 
future elementary school site, and replace and improve its security and technology 
systems and equipment: 
 

Packet page 220 of 225



 -6-  

Collection 
Years 

Estimated Levy 
Rate/$1,000 

Assessed Value 
Levy 

Amount 
2024 $1.09 $6,000,000 
2025 $0.10 $580,000 
2026 $0.10 $600,000 
2027 $0.10 $620,000 
2028 $0.10 $640,000 
2029 $0.10 $660,000 

 
 Should this proposition be approved? 

 
YES..................................... 

 
NO....................................... 

  
 The Secretary of the Board of Directors is hereby authorized to deliver a certified copy of 

this resolution to the Pierce County Auditor. 

Packet page 221 of 225



 -7-  

 ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1, 

Pierce County, Washington, at a [regular][special] meeting thereof, held this [__] day of 

[_______], 2023. 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL 
DISTRICT NO. 1, PIERCE COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON 
 
 
__________________________________________ 

Chair and Director 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
Director 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
Director 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
Director 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
Director 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

_______________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 

Packet page 222 of 225



   

CERTIFICATE 
 

 I, the undersigned, Secretary of the Board of Directors of Steilacoom Historical School 

District No. 1, Pierce County, Washington (the “District”), and keeper of the records of the 

Board of Directors (the “Board”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 1. That the attached resolution is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. [______] 

the Board (the “Resolution”), duly adopted at a [regular][special] meeting thereof held on the 

[___] day of [___________], 2023. 

 2. That said meeting was duly convened and held in all respects in accordance with 

law, and to the extent required by law, due and proper notice of such meeting was given; that a 

legal quorum was present throughout the meeting and a legally sufficient number of members of 

the Board voted in the proper manner for the adoption of said resolution; that all other 

requirements and proceedings incident to the proper adoption of said resolution have been duly 

fulfilled, carried out and otherwise observed; and that I am authorized to execute this certificate. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this [___] day of [_______], 

2023. 

 

        
Secretary, Board of Directors 

Packet page 223 of 225



   

OFFICIAL BALLOT 
STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 

PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
November 7, 2023 

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO VOTERS:  To vote in favor of the following proposition, place a cross (X) 
in the square opposite the words “YES”; to vote against the following proposition, place a cross 
(X) in the square opposite the words “NO.” 
 

PROPOSITION NO. [__] 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS AND TECHNOLOGY LEVY 
 

The Board of Directors of Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 adopted 
Resolution [_________] concerning a proposition for a capital levy. The 
proposition would authorize the District to levy the following excess taxes on all 
taxable property within the District to renovate, expand and improve existing 
facilities of the District, repay an outstanding obligation incurred to purchase a 
future elementary school site, and replace and improve its security and technology 
systems and equipment: 
 

Collection 
Years 

Estimated Levy 
Rate/$1,000 

Assessed Value 
Levy 

Amount 
2024 $1.09 $6,000,000 
2025 $0.10 $580,000 
2026 $0.10 $600,000 
2027 $0.10 $620,000 
2028 $0.10 $640,000 
2029 $0.10 $660,000 

 
 Should this proposition be approved? 

 
YES..................................... 

 
NO....................................... 

 

Packet page 224 of 225



 
10053 00008 ii253z279j               

NOTICE 
STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 

PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 

November 7, 2023 
              

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on November 7, 2023, a special election will be held by mail 
in the above-named school district for the submission to the qualified electors of said school 
district of the following proposition: 
 

PROPOSITION NO. [__] 
 

STEILACOOM HISTORICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1 
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS AND TECHNOLOGY LEVY 
 

The Board of Directors of Steilacoom Historical School District No. 1 adopted 
Resolution [_________] concerning a proposition for a capital levy. The 
proposition would authorize the District to levy the following excess taxes on all 
taxable property within the District to renovate, expand and improve existing 
facilities of the District, repay an outstanding obligation incurred to purchase a 
future elementary school site, and replace and improve its security and technology 
systems and equipment: 
 

Collection 
Years 

Estimated Levy 
Rate/$1,000 

Assessed Value 
Levy 

Amount 
2024 $1.09 $6,000,000 
2025 $0.10 $580,000 
2026 $0.10 $600,000 
2027 $0.10 $620,000 
2028 $0.10 $640,000 
2029 $0.10 $660,000 

 
 Should this proposition be approved? 

 
YES..................................... 

 
NO....................................... 

 
 
 

        
Pierce County Auditor 

Packet page 225 of 225


	Agenda (p. 1)
	Pioneer Athletics Recap.pdf (p. 4)
	SHS Spring Athletics Recap.pdf (p. 9)
	Budget Status Report.pdf (p. 16)
	2023-2024 Budget Hearing Presentation.pdf (p. 27)
	Approval of May and June 2023 Accounts Payable and May 2023 Payroll.pdf (p. 48)
	Approval of May 17 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf (p. 80)
	Approval of Superintendent Personnel Report.pdf (p. 96)
	Approval of Admin Personnel Report.pdf (p. 97)
	Approval of Certificated Personnel Report.pdf (p. 98)
	Approval of Classified Personnel Report.pdf (p. 99)
	Approval of Maintenance Facility Change Order #6.pdf (p. 100)
	Approval of SHS Cheerleading Nationals Trip.pdf (p. 139)
	Approval of Steilacoom High School Sports Boosters Donation.pdf (p. 142)
	Approval of Contingency Fee Agreement.pdf (p. 145)
	Food Services Management Bid Award.pdf (p. 153)
	Interagency Agreement Steilacoom Historical School District and Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Employee Assistance Program.pdf (p. 190)
	Draft 2023-24 School Board Meeting Schedule.pdf (p. 201)
	Approval of SHS Assistant Principal Positions.pdf (p. 202)
	SHSD 2023-24 School Year Fee Schedule.pdf (p. 204)
	Policy 6881 Disposal of Surplus Equipment and or Materials.pdf (p. 210)
	Capital Levy.pdf (p. 213)

